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Financial highlights

£23.0m

Profit after tax

6.75p

Annual dividends per share

63.4p

Earnings per share

£231.4m

Nef assets

£14.4m

Net borrowings

H63p

Net assets per share

Net assets per share

Earnings per share

Dividends per share
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Chairman’s statement

| am pleased to report another very
satisfactory year for your Company,
resulting in a significant uplift in
shareholder funds

An increased contnbution from our development
actwrhes, coupled with a strong performance
from our property investment porticlio enables
me to report a profit after tax of £236 milion
and earnings of 63 4 pence per share,
compared to £201 million and 54 8 pence

per share for the previous year

Shareholder funds increased for the eleventh
successve year, reaching £231 4 million,
equivalent to 588 pence per share This
compares to £187 B millon and 510 pence
per share 12 months earlier

In light of this strong performance, the
Board has recommended the payment of
a final Ordinary dividend for the year of
450 pence per share, payable on 6th July
2007 to shareholders on the register on
Bth June 2007 This brings the total Ordinary
dividend coupon for the year to 675 pence
per share, an adgvance of six per cent over
the previous year

The increased strength of our balance sheet
of course reflects the £23 1 million Ordinary
share ptacing In November 2006, when

37 milhon shares were 1ssued at a pnce

of 625 pence per share As shareholders

will be aware, the proceeds of the placing
were principally utihsed to acquire a 10-acre
development site In Birmingham, thus allowing
your Company to conserve its cash resources

*Refer note 1(p)

for other potential property acquisitions

We were pleased with the strength of support
demonsirated by both existing and new
shareholders for this successful placing

Strategy

Shareholders will be aware that the strategic
focus of our development actvities over the
last two years has been suburban London
and the man provincial UK cities, rather than
Central London The City of London property
market remains innately volatile, due to the
dominance of its financial services sector
and, together with the West End market,

Is always likely to become one of the most
competitive in any development cycle upturn
For some time now, we have believed that

a more attractive nsk/return ratro would be
avallable elsewhere Indeed, 2006 was a
year of considerable progress in pursut of

our chosen sirategy, with project 'wins' in
Birmingham, Hammersrmith, Southampton
and significant advances at recently acquired
sites in North London, Huyton and Manchester

We continue to search out developments we
beleve will give us a competiive advantage,
due to the scale and complexity of urban
regeneration, for which your Company has
considerable proven expertise It 1s likely that
large-scale, muli-phase projects, such as
Curzon Park in Birmingham, will be delivered
over maore than one economic cycle This
will offer good wisibility to cur future actvity
and, we hope, potential profitability over the
medium term Our development portfolic
now compiises a number of similar projects,
further underpinming what we believe to be
a sustainable business model

The growing size and strength of our

balance sheet, recently augmented by the

£23 1 millon share placing, supports our
adjusted business model, whereby we now
consider 1t appropriate to secure direct
ownership of land for development Qur recent
£33 5 milion acquisition of Curzon Park, in
equal partnership with Grainger PLC, 15 a
case In point We also plan to take an equity
interest in Beadon Road, Hammersmith
Acquinng land 15 relatively straightforward and
can now be achieved within the constraints of
our enlarged capital structure However,

the subsequent development 1s much more
capital intensive Therefore, we will continue
to seek leading financial institutions as equity
partners, either in an indwidual phase or
posstbly through the entire project, thus
maintaining our nsk-averse approach

For a sixth successive year, | am pleased to
report an excellent level of returns from our
property investment portiolic, generated by
Matthew Weiner and his team In 2006, your
Company achieved an 185 per cent IPD
Total Portfolio Return® which compares
favourably to the average market return of
181 per cent In broad terms, six per cent
came from the rental income of the properties
themselves and the balance from realised and
unrealised surpluses over existing book values

During the year, we realised gains from
properties where we felt medium-term rental
growth prospects were Imited However,
renvestment of these proceeds proved more
challenging than ever due to the seemingly
relentless weight of maney seeking similar




Roy Dantzic, Chairman

assets As a result, allocation of our
resources Info the investment property
portfolio fell below target levels Income
returns in the cash market now approach
those avallable in the direct real estate
market In order to justify the nsk nherent in
property ownership, 1t 1s important that asset
value grows through significant property-
related imbiatives We have never beleved
market momentum {o be the sole justification
for property investment

Outlook

Whilst we long ago gave up predicting an
end to the current investment market boom,
we find t difficult to beheve that the total
nvestment returns of recent years will be
sustanable n 2007 However, we will
continue to seek superor perfermance
through active management both of our
existing porifolio and of acquisitions

At such ponts in the property cycle supenor
returns may be more readily obtaimed in

the development arena This 1s increasingly
understood by our traditional institutional
development and joint venture pariners, banks
and by those with adequate financial and
professional resources to compete alongside
us The strength of the current development
cycle will benefit from continuing employment
growth, a benign economic outlook and
declming office vacancy rates Prospects

for the medium term encourage us to further
expand our project portfolio, which presently
has a completed nvestment value in excess
of £1 billion
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We continue to search out developments which we believe will
provide us with a competitive advantage due to the scale and
complextty that urban regeneration often entalls and for which
your Company has considerable proven expertise

In this regard, your Company will pursue two
tactical opbons First, we believe our resources
will be more efficiently employed by continuing
to focus on urban development opportunities
in suburban London and the main UK
provincial ciies, where our brand strength
and reputation continue to grow Second,

we remain keen to expand our regional

Joint venture relationships with those whose
experbse best complements our own In
some instances, our partners will be of equal
financial strength, in others we may take the
financial lead while the appropnate regional
speciahst heads the development project.

We lcok forward to establishing mare such
relationships in the near and medium term

Board composition

As previously reported, Bill Grant retired from
the Board in May 2006 Earher this month,
Paul Willis steod down as a member of

our Board for family reasons We wish him
well for the future After four years as your
Chairman, | shall not be seeking re-election at
this year's Annual General Meeting | shall be
succeeded by David Jenkins, who joined the
Board in February Dawd retired three years
ago as a senior audtt partner of Deloitte &
Touche LLP where he specialised n the
property sector for most of his career | have
no doubt that he wilt make a sigmificant
contnbution to the Company's further progress

Conclusion

The sirength of the property investment
market and the retums now emerging from
our development portfolio resulted in our 2006

financial performance exceeding even that

of 2005 We do not yet discem any credible

or significant threats to the property seclor as
an asset class, unless values are driven still
higher in 2007, which would make us more
apprehensive Global growth may slow
marginally n 2007, but this might be of benefit,
allowing interest rates generally to fall slightly
as any perceved inflationary threats recede

Gwen the structure and timing of our
development activity, we may well have

to wait untl 2008 for the next meaningful
contnbution to our financial results We will
endeavour to extend our pipeline of projects
n the medium term Our financial resources
remain avallable to support any new
opportuntiies that we consider will provide
the returns we seek

It remains for me to thank all of our Directors,
management and staff for ther valued
contributions to our performance to date
Therr professionalism and reputations have
been an undoubted imporiant feature of our
success so far Long may it continue

I am certain we have the executive and
management teams to meet the challenges
that lie ahead

Roy Dantzic
Chairman
30th March 2007
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Balance and diversity

The emphasis on measured risk 1s at the
heart of our management philosophy

Development Securities 1s one of the
UK'’s leading property development and
investment companies Its objective 1s to
generate consistent superior returns for
investors by the creation and recycling
of development gains and investment
surpluses but always subject to prudent
financial management.

The emphasis on measured nsk 1s at the
heart of our management philosophy, 1t
assists the achievement of consistent
resufts over time and the protection of
the business and its investors from the
effects of major market fluctuations

Balance and diversity

Qur balanced business model, which we
have applied consistently since the present
management team began to come together
in the mid 1990s, has delivered positive
returns for shareholders Mantaining balance
between short- and long-term retums, large-
scale mult-phase projects and smaller
scale developments, across office, retal and
industnal sectors, with sites across the UK,
provides the necessary diversity to minimise
the nsks inherent in property development.

In our experience, large and complex
development projects offer greater profit
potental than smaller ones, without significanily
Increasing the inherent nisk profile Qur
strategy enables the Company to focus s
efforts on these major projects, which would
otherwise be beyond our capability to finance
with internally generated funds

Forward-funding

The single most important component 1s

the appropnate and balanced sharing of

nsk in the complex and very substantial
development projects in which we are
involved These projects include our schemes
at PaddingtonCentral, Cambourne Business
fPark, The Royals Business Park, Heart of
Slough and Curzon Park in Brmingham,
comprising over three millien sq ft. and we
do not believe 1t 1s appropriate for a company
of our size to accept sole development nsk

in relation to this scale of actvity Accordingly,
we endeavour to share the majonly of

such development project nsk with financial
institutions and partners who are the more
appropnate long-term investors for real estate
projects of this scale

Investment portfolio

The profits and cash flow from large
developments can be uneven because they are
influenced substanhally by market condiions

The Company allocates a significant element
of its equrty to the ownership of a diverse
mvestment portfohe, consisting of properties
spread across the UK, covenng office, retal and
industnal sectors this mix 15 driven by market
conditions, availlability and stock selection

The investment portiolo provides a steady
and predictable flow of funds, coniributing
significantly fowards interest costs and central
overheads Furthermore, these funds enable
the Company to retain its small team of high
qualty professionals duning a property market

downturn The Company has built an
excellent team which has delivered value
to investors, and that must be maintained

Conservative use of debt

While cash resources are generally avalable
to allow us to capitalise on appropriate
development and investment opportunities,
balance sheet management and the
conservative use of cash and debt apply

an addiional discipline to the Company as

a further prudent methed of nsk control

As a matter of policy, Development Securities
does not have a fixed geanng limit, although
In recent years its level of net borrowings as
a percentage of shareholders' funds has been
amongst the lowest in the property sector
Consistent with our policy of running an
efficient balance sheet, from time to time
surplus cash may become avalable to return
to sharehclders The timing is related to the
completion of major development projects
when we benefit from substanbal cash
inflows If crcumstances allow, funds are
returned to shareholders by special dividend
or a share buy-back programme The timing
and nature of such action will be determined
after taking info account prevaiing market
condibons and projected cash requirements
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Five Year Summary 2006* 2005 2004 2003 2002
restated

E'm £'m €m gEm £'m
Results
Revenue 487 255 237 322 335
Profit before taxation 298 233 188 12 100
Net assets 2314 1875 1732 1251 1215
Statistics
Earnings per share 63 4p 54.8p 54 3p 42p 268p
Net assets per share 568p 510p 472 444p 423p

*The 2004 2005 and 2006 results have been determined i accordance with IFRS




Development Securities differs from
most property companies in that it
seldom owns the major developments
that it 1s working on, although it may, on
some schemes, have a modest financial
or even equity involvement This low-risk
financial structure, known as forward-
funding, 1s central to the Company’s
progress and assists in providing a clear
view of potential earnings and cash flow
streams for a number of years ahead
Such a strategy also provides leveraged
returns for your Company’s expertise
and financial commitment.

Your Company has considerable expertise

in the creation and management of major,
complex, mixed-use property developments
Such schemes include PaddingtonCentrai,
the exciting project on the old goods yard
adjoining Paddington Station, and The Royals
Business Park, a 50-acre site with a one mile
frontage onto the Royal Albert Dock, one of
the foremost regeneration areas i the UK

Our team uses its expertise to entify a
potental major development, prepare detaled
drawings and financial appraisals and seeks
any necessary vanaton to planning consents
In parallel with this actraty, we present the
scheme fo leading financial inshitutions,
inviting them to invest n the development

of the project

Our strategy
Development Secunties PLC
Annual Report 2006

Balance and diversity

Funding and partnerships

Once the funding and insttutonal ownership
of a new development has been secured,
Development Secures 1s normally responsible
for project managing the construction process,
delivenng the bulding on time and wathin
budget As part of its agreement with the
project’s investors, Development Secunties also
assumes respensibility for leting the completed
building, usually on inshitubonal terms to quality
covenants The Company's profit comes from
project management fees and a pariicipation

In any uplft ansing to the investors in the final
investment value of the project when compared
to the total development cost Forward-funding
imposes imited contractual labibty on
Development Secunties should the completed
building not be let profitably This 1s a key
benefit and highlights one of the main
differences between forward-funding and
conventional financing of property development
That our strategy 1s also successful for
funding institutions 1s illustrated by our

list of funding pariners

At this stage in the development cycle
substantal sums of money are Increasingly
required to secure significant sites Qur nsk
capital in ihe development part of our business
will be increasingly allocated to direct interests
in land, rather than in development actmiy itself
Each subsequent phase could, If appropnate, be
developed together with instrtutional partners on
a more tradiional forward-funded basis. In line
with our nsk-averse strategies we will invanably
seek joint venture partners to share even the
inihial land nsk for our large scale projects. Curzon
Park in Birmingham, which we recently jont
ventured wath Grainger PLC, 1s a good example

On small- and medium-sized projects, the

Company may assume complete ownership
of assets directly, but will seek wherever
possible to secure sigruficant pre-let
arrangements that reduce exposure to

the occuprer market

Our funding partners have included
Standard Life Investments

The Prudential Assurance Company

Legal & General Assurance Society
Universites Superannuation Scheme Limited
Morley Fund Management

DEKA Immobilien Investment GmbH
Commerz Grundbesitz Investmenigesellschatt
Deutsche Grundbesitz Investmentgesellschaft
Pillar Property PLC

DIFA Deutsche Immobilen Fonds AG
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Balance and diversity

Regional urban regeneration

In line with our strategy of batance and
diversity, the emphasis of our business
has broadened in recent years, from
undertaking individual developments in
Central London, in two important respects

Following our success at PaddingtonCentral,
we have continued to seek out projects

that involve significant regeneration Not only
does urban regeneration offer those direct
stakeholders in the property tself a significant
reward for the risks and complexities
undertaken, it also benefits those communities
adiacent to these developments and the people
working within them With such projects
taking place in locations which have perhaps
been undervalued, it 1s often the case that
rental levels improve significantly Additionally,
investment yields will often also improve,
reflecting the perceved improved status

of the location

The more large-scale projects we undertake
successfully, the more we are recognised

as responsible and capable pariners fo local
authonties seeking effective regeneration
The qualtty of our professional team coupled
with cur ability o externally fund large-scale
projects, lmibing the nisks for all parties,

15 Increasingly making us the preferred
regeneration partner To some extent, a virtuous
crrcle i1s created Whilst our track record in
large-scale projects conbinues to expand,
significant scale bnngs with 1t a requirement
for an extended vision of the character and
environment of the development to be
created and with i, invanably, a considerable
amount of construction and legal complexity
These factors represent significant barriers
to entry for competing developers

It 1s, of course, not just in London where
regeneration activity 1s needed and, over
the last few years, we have secured similar
schemes in provincial cities and towns with
the same strategic objectives The Heart of
Slough project entals circa 350,000 sq ft
of prime office accommodation alongside
a much larger residential component.

In Birmingham, we acquired in 2006 an
11-acre site which will ultmately contam
over one miflion sq ft. of mixed-use
accommodation In many ways, this site is
similar to the PaddingtenCentral scheme in
Central London in that it 1s a large tract of
land close to a major rail terminus, bordered
both by a ratlway line and a canal

As our track record shows, we are
nct imited to any geographical area
in the UK, but we will tend to focus
on the major conurbations where
large-scale urban regeneration
projecls are sourced

One of the benefits of a

regional appreach to urban

regeneration 1s that land tends

to be mare affordable This reduces
specific asset nsk and competition

te acquire additional projects Is

less intense than that experienced

in London Such a strategy

self-evidently also provides a
geographically diversified

nsk profile Finally,

large-scale regeneration 15

frequently of a mixed-use nature, which also
dwersifies nsk inta different market seclors




The challenge for a development
business such as ours 1s to provide a
sustainable business medet through the
vagaries of the property and business
cycles This requires combining short-
term development gains with a long
pipeline of mult-phase projects

Development pipeline

1

Qur strategy
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Balance and diversity

Short-term and long-term visibility

Development Secunties has assembled a
significant portfolio of large-scale development
projects that offer the prospect of opportumty
and reward spanning, In a number of cases,
an extended period Many of our projects are
multi-phased and have stretched, or are likely
{o stretch, over a number of property and
economic cycles, gvng us an unusual degree
of visibity of future earnings

However, we also seek to identify smaller,
indmidual and self-contained developments
and when these are overlad on the larger-
scale, mult-phased schemes, it 15 our view that
a more sustainable business model emerges

PaddingtonCentral
Cambourne

Slough

The Royals Business Park
Curzon Park, Birmungham

1999' 2000 | 2001 | 2002 2003| 2004 | 2005] 2008 2007' 2008‘ 2009| 2010 | 2011 I 2012 I 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017
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Review of operations

2006 represented the fourth consecutive year
of divergence between the property investment
market and the occupational market

Sustained and strong investment demand
was reflected 1n 2006 with capital values
nsing almost as much as they had in 2005

investors were seemingly willing to accept
the further compression in yields that this
represented Whilst it remains to be seen
whether these mvestment ratings are
sustamable in the medium to long term, it 1s
comforting to observe that the fundamentals
underpinning the real UK economy remain
supportive of property values In particular,
office rents are now growing at their fastest
rate for five years, albett that this positive
trend owes much to the considerable
improvement witnessed in the Central London
market. Employment growth is expected to
remain fairly constant over the next few years,
supported by an economy which might be
expected to return to trend growth in 2008
and 20089, after a possible shght deceleration
in 2007 Interest rates in 2006, both in the
UK and the US, have trended upwards fargely
in response to inflatienary indications and
have probably all but peaked Even so, the
nse in property values continued uninterrupted
in 2008 and may well be sustainable in the
medium term If investors feel confident
regarding economic fundamentals and the
prospects for rental growth

Through this penod of nsing property investment
pnces, we have maintained our strategy of
realsing surpluses where we felt we were no
longer able to exiract additional value rather
than expecting market momentum to generate
further gans Conversely, it has been a much
more difficult market in which to source new
investment product Competition in the market
place in 2006 was even less discerning In the

relaionship between quality and value
Accordingly, dunng 2006, the investment
markets became less attractive to us In
general terms than the development arena

Current development programme

2006 has seen considerable actvity in our
development programme with successes
achieved on a number of existing projects
and some further deals which either extend,
or have a significant possibility of extending,
our pipeline of future work. We are encouraged
that institutional investment support 1s
increasingly avalable to fund development
projects, since it 1s precisely this class of
long-term, patient capital that 1s the best
underpinning for market stabilty and growth
A concern with any development actvity must
be that developers and insttutions engender
such a signdicant oversupply of product

that the current upswing ends prematurely
Whilst we are always mindfu! of such events,
we believe there 1s some way to go to the
end of this development cycle, especially f
UK and global economic growth continues
The Central London markets are, unsurpnsingly,
currently demonstrating the largest increases
with strong rental and asset value growth in
both the City and West End markets it remans
to be seen whether demand here can be
sustained and to what degree the supply
side response may act as a brake on rental
growth The lead tmes involved in large-scale,
urban development are considerable and
there 1s little margn for error especially if
site acquisitions are made at values which
reflect current short-term invester demand
rather more than those predicated on
economic fundamentals
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PaddingtonCentral

Few projects can better illustrate the cycheal
nature of the property markets in Central
London than our large-scale, urban regeneration
scheme adjacent to London's West End,
which has turned a derelict former ralway
yard into a dynamic living and working
environment, supported by retal and leisure
amenifies The substantial first phase
commenced in 2000 and was fully-let

on completion, scme two years later, with

your Company's share of profit easily
surpassing the anticipated level due to strength
in both the letting and investment markets

A further penod of four years was to follow
until the property markets were strong enough
{0 support construction of the second phase,
beginrung in Apnl 2006 The intervening years
have not been entrely unproductive, as both
the completion of the £30 million ‘Crossrail
Deck' and the reopening of the newly
widened six-lane, 175-metre long Paddington
Bndge on Bishops Bndge Road provided wital
new nfrastructure to underpin future phases

The current phase under construchion, a
250,000 sq. ft office bullding at One Kingdom
Street and a 206-room Accor hotel, 1s
scheduled for practical completion in 2008
and 1s funded by our development partners
Morley Fund Management and DIFA
Deutsche Immobilien Fonds AG Phase three,
2 366,000 sq ft pnme office building known
as Twe Kingdom Street, has already been
granted detailed planning consent and
represenis a substantal pre-let opportumiy
in a market where occupiers for large space
face bmsted choice from existing bulldings

Review of cperaticns
Development Secunties PLC
Annual Report 2005

CityPark, Manchester

This mixed-use site was acquired towards
the end of 2004 for £3 million Whilst outline
planning existed for a 94,000 sq ft. hotel and
a 177,000 sq ft office bulding, vanation in
mix and guantum of space was sought and
achieved in 2006 That part of the site on
which the hotel will be developed has been
sold to a reputable hotel operator We are
close to finalising the forward-funding
arrangements for the sale and development

of the office component

Colindale, London NW

In November 2008, we were pleased to
note that our proposals to redevelop Onental
Cry, at 399 Edgware Road, London NWS,
recewved a unanimous resolution from the
London Borough of Brent te grant planning
consent for a new mixed-use scheme to
include 300,000 sq ft gross retall space
and 340,000 sq ft of private and affordable
housing, along with associated retall and
residential car parking It 1s particularly
beneficial that the development will also
include a new 80,000 sq fi pnmary school
for 420 pupils, the first pnmary school to be
built in Brent in the last 50 years Markeling
of the available accornmodation to retal and
residential third parties has begun and we
are cautously optimistic that our onginal
value expectations will be met This 75-acre
property, currently compnsing 100,000 sq, ft
of retal accommodation with 750 car park
spaces was acquired in June 2005

Cavendish Walk Shopping Centre, Huyton
2006 ended with a more than satisfactory
outcome with the completion of this new
110,000 sq. ft. retal scheme in Huyton,
near Liverpool Acquired by your Company
in January 2005, and constructed by our
jont development partner, CTP Limited, this
scheme achieved practical completion in
December 2006 This was immediately
followed by the disposal to a private investor
for £24 0 million reflecting an mihial yield

of 55 per cent and generating a net surplus
of £58 millon On our acquisiion of the site,
Wilkinsons PLC was the sole pre-let anchor
tenant, with the majonity of the space letting
up dunng construction and against the
background of a weakening retal marked,
mostly to well known High Street names
We beheve that retallers prefer such thnving
and cost-effective locations over expensive
prnime pitches, and will continue to seek out
similar opportunibies in the future This project
15 a good illustration of the synergy between
our development and investment skills

As momentum in the investment market
slows, such a combination of our skill base
will prove key to further successful projects
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Curzon Park, Birmingham

In November 2008, in equal partnership
with Grainger PLC, we acquired the 10-acre
Curzon Park site for £335 milion The
proposec 14 million sq ft. mixed-use project,
with a gross development value of over
£350 milhen, will compnse approximately
800,000 sq ft. of office and 400,000 sq ft.
of residential accommodation, together with
a 180-bed hotel and 30,000 sq {t of retall
space The development strategy includes
the secunng of planning consent, delivery

of £12 million of nfrastructure works and

a phased development of the site over a penod
of approximately 11 years li is intended

that your Company will project manage the
planning process and construction of the
infrasiructure and commercial phases,

with Grainger PLC project managing the
residential componeni

The Royals Business Park

In June 2006, our funding partner, Standard
Life Investments, secured the first letting

of some 10,000 sq fi. at Bulding 1000,
the 252,000 sq ft new Grade A office
accommodation completed speculatively in
2004 Whilst Standard Life have a number
of other Iive enquines, the level of demand
for offices in this location has clearly not met
inital expectations, and we are in discussion
with the London Development Agency with

a view to introducing other users to the

site in order to create a truly mixed-use and
sustainable environment. We continue to be
cautiously optimistic that discussions with
paries interested in some of the remaining
accommodation will be successful

Review of operations
Development Secunties PLC
Annual Report 2006

Luneside, Lancaster

In md-20086, a compulsory purchase order
was confirmed in respect of this 17 5-acre
urban regeneration project A land remediation
strategy and detailed planning apphication are
being dewvised, with a view to starking on site
in 2007 The development will compnse 350
new homes, 90,000 sq ft. of new offices and
a hotel

Cambourne Business Park

In July 20086, we leased further space on
phase two of this 760,000 sq ft development,
leaving only 30,000 sq ft avallable to let
Located ine miles from Cambndge, this
business park i1s an integral part of the new
Cambourne settlement, a 1,040-acre scheme
of 3,300 houses with town centre, hotel,
retall and leisure faciliies Discussions are
presently in hand with the institutional market
to forward-fund the next 50,000 sq ft phase

Hammersmith Grove, London Wé

In Cctober 2006, following a detated
selection process, Development Secunties
was selected by Transport {or London as

its preferred development partner for

the 15-acre Hammersmith Car Park Site
immediately adjacent to Hammersmuith
Underground Staton Consultation with the
relevant planning authonly 15 underway, with
the anticipation that construction on site can
commence by the end of 2007, n order to
delwer the completed 350,000 sq ft bulding
to include offices, retall, and a cinema by the
end of 2009

West Quay lll, Southampton

Sigrificant milestones have been achieved

at the West Quay Road site in the centre

of Southampton Furstly, in the autumn, we
signed an Agreement to Lease with Carnival
PLC to develop therr new 150,000 sq ft UK
headquarters bulding and then, early in 2007,
we secured detalled planning consent for
this project, the first of what we hope will

be a two phase mixed-use scheme adjacent
to the existing West Quay Shopping Centre
Finally, n March 2007, we exchanged
contracts with Lime Preperty Fund LP to
fund the site and development of the bullding
Practical completion of the first phase is
eshmated for 2009 If our current negotiations
are successful, the second phase of this
urban regeneration project Is expected to
provde a further 50,000 sq ft of office,
75000 sq ft of residential or hotel use and
5,000 sq ft of retal accommedation toegether
with a 20,000 sq ft casino

Broughton

In the first half of 2006, Flintshire County
Council approved the resolution to grant
planring consent for both the 170800 sq, it
extenston to the existing Broughton Retail
Park and the related highway link from the
ABS Whilst realisation of any profit potential
from this phase wili ulimately await the
conclusion of discussions with Brtish Land
PLC, we did move ahead in November 2006
by acquinng not only the land necessary to
constuct the interchange that will provide
enhanced access to the expanded retail
facilites, but also the 10 acres of land
required to construct a reservabon for the
existing, protected local population of greater
crested newts
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In October 20086, Flintshire County Councit
rakfied in their emerging Unitary Development
Plan (UDP) the status of our 1G-acre site as
allocated for residenttal purposes The number
of units that the Council considered could be
accommeodated on the land was increased

by 35 to 260 dwellings, in ine with our earher
planning apphcation At the same meeting n
October, the Local Authonty confumed within
the emerging UDP, that a further two acres

of our land has been designated for non-retail
commercial use. The emerging UDP 1s expected
to be ratfied within the next 15 months

Heart of Slough

During 2006, English Partnerships gained
approval for a £17 million gross infrastructure
investment to enable the Heart of Slough
regeneration scheme We are now prepanng
the outline masterplan alongside our joint
venture partners, Berkeley Homes, Slough
Borough Council and English Partnerships,
with a view fo commencing development

in 2008, with completion of the first phase
anticipated two years later In September, we
acquired Comparr House, a key strategic site
that will permit the permanent relocation of
the existing town centre bus station, thus
releasing the existing facility for redevelopment
to provide approximately 300,000 sq f of
commercial space adjacent to the town's
transport hub We are encouraged by the
conbinued gradual reduction in the office
vacancy rate in Slough and expect stll further
strengthening of the local occupational
market in the medium term

Review of operations
Development Secunties PLC
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Princes Road, Wells

In early 2006, in jont venture with respected
town centre developer Centros Miller,
Development Secunties acquired three
strategic sttes at the edge of Wells town
centre The sites form part of a wider area
identified by Mendip District Council for

a comprehenswve, reta-led, mixed-use
development in excess of 100,000 sq ft
The joint venture has recently signed a
Lock Out Agreement with the Local Authonty
which 1s the significant furst step in the
preparation of a masterplan for the wider
project. We are also working with the
adjoning occupter, Tesco PLC, o incorporate
an enlarged food store into the master plan,
to the benefit of all parties

Telford Place, Crawley

Towards the end of 2008, we entered into
a further joint venture with Centros Miller
under which Development Secunhes has
now acquired two parcels of land adjacent
to the town centre in Crawley Working
with English Partnerships, the joint venture
will promote the sites for a 200,000 sq fi.
residential-led, mixed-use development

A planning application has been submitted
and we are hopeful to have secured all the
required consents by the end of 2007

This transaction strengthens our relationship
with Centros Miller and 1s a further advance
into an increasingly favoured area in which
value 1s added via the planning process

This 1s a complex aspect of the development
process, but one where we feel our core skills
and risk-focused strategy will allow significant
returns to sharehaolders

Hartfield Road, Wimbledon

In February 2006, in a joint venture with
Fonavon Limited, conditional cantracts
were exchanged to acquire the 1 25-acre
development site at Harthield Road We expect
our planning application for a 169,000 sq ft
scheme to compnse 63,000 sq ft of
residential accornmaodation, a 30,000 sq ft
hotel and 66,000 sq ft. of retall space
together with car parking for 220 vehicles
to be considered in the next few weeks
Practical completion 1s targeted for 2009

Frimley and Marlow

in November 2006, Development Securties
and Equitable Life Assurance Society
entered into an Agreement {0 Lease the
entire 180,000 sq ft office campus to
Siemens Holdings PLC for a 20-year

term Simultaneously, we sold our equity
stake in this scheme and our residual equity
stake at Globeside, Marlow to Equitable Life,
generating a combined surplus of £29 milion
over book values

Staines

In the first half of 2006, we reached
agreement with the adjoining land owner

to jointly promote for planring our combined
land holdings in this significant development
site which could accommodate a 250,000 sq. ft
office building A planning apphication has
been submitted and i1s awaiting determ:nation
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Property investment

porttolio

2006 marked another strong year in the
property investment market with total
returns reaching 18 5 per cent. This 1s
the third consecutive year where returns
have reached these excephonal levels
and against a backdrop of sold, if not
spectacular, economic growth, the future
would appear to bhe set farr

Once agan, financal performance was drven
prmanty by falling mnvestment yields as the
weight of money targeting the real estate secter
remained strong Yield compression has been

a global phenomenon, reflecting the glut of
savings In Asia and energy-producing countries
This further compression continued in the face
of nsing interest rates, such that the IPD Intbal
Yield', of 46 per cent finished the year 70 basis
ponts below the five-year finance swap rate,
making the leveraged investor a reticent
partcipant Risk aversion may return if percepbons
change regarding UK monetary policy

We are beginnung to see the early signs of
this particular reverse yield gap impacting on
secondary property values, which compnse
the butk of investment stock, as the market
becomes more selectve where rentat
growth prospects look mited and where
yield compression s no longer seen to be
the apparent indiscnminate driver of
enhanced returns Yield differenbals will
eventually adjust to reflect the realibies of
the occupational market as compared to the
current exuberance of the investment market
We have sought to close out our exposure

“Refer note 1 (p)

in this sector of the market since values of
these assets may detenorate rapidly, depending
on the cost and availability of money It is
worth reflecting that whilst markets can take
a long tme to nse, they can reverse at a more
alarming rate

The value of pnme property, by virtue of location,
covenant or asset management opporturuties,
will remain stable There remains a wall of
maney chasing a finite property supply

We have increasingly focused our portiolio
towards assets with one or all of these
charactenstics

As the capital markets plateau, the focus will
once again tum to the income-related element
of retums which irvolves the demand and supply
balance in occupational markets Encouragingly,
2008 saw rental growth coninbuting to returns,
with offices doing notably well relatve to retail
and industnal property

We feel that the Company's exposure to the
office market 1s best achieved through s
development business where we can, through
new bulld and refurbishment projects, prowde
high quality accommodation which will have
enhanced letting and performance prospects
We are uncertain as to whether the recovery in
this sector will spread to Grade B and C quality
buldings which form the bulk of investment
grade stock

Despite a softening retall sector, we reman
focused within our nvestment portfolio on the

convenience shopping market, where consumer
expenditure, by its nature, 1s more stable

The key component of the strategy 15 a

food retall offer erther within or adjoining

the scheme Since this 1s the one area of

the retail market enjoying both volume and
value growth, our focus remains on shopping
centres which offer a combination of secure
inceme and significant asset management
opportunities compared to the tradibonal High
Street, which we feel 1s more threatened We
have sold all of cur remaining unit shop
exposure dunng the course of 2006 except
those assets with short-term value potental

These vanous themes make the investment
market difficult to predict We therefore
remain even more commitied to our three
key investment principles of sector rotation,
stock selechon and proactive management,
Of these, we remain convinced that stock
selection 1s the key to performance In
addibon, we remain focused on releasing
value from the assets we own

In general, 2006 could be charactensed

as a year in which we reduced exposure to
vulnerable assets, replenished our pipeline of
opportunities and above all maximised value
through our management activities In total
during 2006, we disposed of £45 milhon of
properly i eight transactions which included
the Pnncess of Wales Centre, Dewsbury
The key to achieving future cut-performance
will be the intensive asset management of
each holding and we believe, perhaps justified
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by our long term out-performance of the
investment market, that we possess the
requisite skills to achieve this

A remarkable £40 milion of value was
created over the year at The Furlong Centre,
Ringwood where 2006 saw the continuation
of our active strategy to take back units and
re-let to aspirational retailers, thereby drving
rental values further Rental levels have
broken through the £60 per sq ft Zone A
level and we are hopeful of achieving i
excess of £70 per sq ft Zone A wath cur
next leting In addition, the turnover provisions
that we secured in some |eases, based on
our confidence in the trading potential of the
Centre, are starting to generate additional
income and should increase the rental levels
to an effective £100 per sq ft So successful
have we been in recent years, that we now
have few units remaining with which to
implement this strategy Consequently,

we have secured adjoining land for further
phases of development at The Furlong
Centre The additional cntical mass thus
created will improve dwell times within the
scheme and further improve the rental tone
This process of further land assembly is
almost complete and we are hopeful of
securing planning consent and commencing
on site during 2007

We continue a similar process at Thatcham
where, dunng 2006, we also acquired adjoining
land Here again we hope to make a planning
applhcation shortly and are close to securing
those final land acquisitions required for

Property investment portfolic
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implementation We have been encouraged
by the lettings achieved in 2006, which
have seen rents improve by 11 per cent,
and believe there ts latent demand for the
new space to be created

At Swanley Shopping Centre, we intend

to submit a planning application shortly for
the comprehensive redevelopment of the
entre scheme Not only is a positive dialogue
underway with the Local Authonty and local
interest groups, but pre-letting mterest 1s
encouraging us to maintain the initiative

This retal development strategy coupled with
a defensive iInvestment strategy 1s an evoling
area of our business in which we prefer to
work in conjunction with smaller, speciahst
partners who assist in faciitating these
opportunities We have long recognised the
need to ensure that we have a clear pipelne
of opporturities that will deliver value whether
or not the investment market continues its
current strength Sourcing these deals 15 the
current challenge and we are pleased with
our progress to date

During the course of 2006, we acguired
interests worth £4 3 millon in two other
schemes. In one, we are in advanced
negotiations to pre-let a food store, with a
favourable planning decision anticipated by
mid-2007 The other project should provide
medwm-term pipeline product and, when
consdered alongside our projects at Ringwood,
Thatcham and Swanley, 1s ample confirmation
of an enviable stream of such projects

Other asset management mitatives completed
dunng 2006 included the restructunng of
retal leases at Bexleyheath which contnbuted
to the 23 per cent increase In the property's
value At our retall warehouse n Formby,

we agreed with the tenant a surrender and
re-grant of the occupational lease, which
allowed us to agree a sale just before the
year-end In a difficult market, thus removing
a problematic covenant exposure from our
balance sheet, Completion of this transaction
occured in February 2007

Significant progress has been achieved

at Peacock Place, Northampton, our joint
venture shopping centre project with
Capmark, acquired in December 2005

The refurbishrnent of the internal areas
commenced in January 2007 and we are
now starting to reposition and re-market
the Centre to access latent demand within
the town Discussians are alse ongoing with
the major Cenire occuprers to enlarge therr
holdings, thereby strengthening and
re-anchoring the scheme

We have completed the refurbishment of

our vacant warehouse in Wigan, acquired
early in 2006 Demand n the logistics market
has been patchy, but we are beginning to see
a resurgence n demand i the 100,000 sq fi
size range as distnbutors look to acquire
sub-regional facilities In addition, there are
tentatve signs of demand from manufacturers
seeking to upgrade facilibes We are optimistic
that an occupier for the unit will be secured
during 2007
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Key performance indicators

Since the business of property investment and
development, especially that of Development
Secunties which has a considerable emphasis
on development actmty, can only properly be
judged over a long penod, probably a complete
cycle, annual performance indicators are of
less relevance in running our business That
said, Total Shareholder Return® 1s a goed guide
io relatve performance, but the importance of
that measure needs to be moderated by both
the nisk profile which we are prepared to
accept and the precise stage that has been
reached in any cycle Our compound Total
Shareholder Return since January 2000, the
date on which we would regard the present
cycle to have commenced, 1s 18 per cent

per annum This compares to 21 per cent

as simitarly denved from the Real Estate
sector index. One of the contributors to our
comparative under-performance to date 1s the
lower level of geanng® with which Development
Securihes has cperated over the current
cycle It s therefore perhaps not unexpected
that the conseguent reduchon in exposure

to volatility sk should lead to a lower actual
and required level of returns That said, we
are of the view that the next stages of the
current cycle should generate superor
returns from development activity, rather

than investment portfclios

*Refer nate 1(p)
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We also measure our overall nvestment
portfolo performance aganst an appropnate
IPD Index" in order to assess relatwe
performance of this asset class In 2006,

the total return generated from our
investment portfolio was 185 per cent,
compared to the IPD Index of 181 per cent.
Qver the last five years, our total return has
been 190 per cent, as compared to 161 per
cent of the IPD Index.

Debt and equity structure

Our geaning continues to be low, at

62 per cent at 31 December 2006,
compared to 169 per cent at the end of

the previous year Qur gross debt totalled
£1029 milhon whilst we held £88 5 million of
cash deposits £69 million of those deposits
were pledged as collateral to certain of

our lenders In November 2006, we 1ssued
37 million Ordinary shares by way of & placing,
raising gross proceeds of £23 t million

These proceeds were principally used to

fund the acquistbon of the Curzon Park

site 1 Bimingham We continue to earmark a
significant proportion of our cash balances to
identified projects on which we are presentiy
engaged and would expect our gearing levels
to increase dunng 2007 if we are successful
in securing alt of the projects for which we
are now In negotiation

Tenant profile

12
B
3
4
1 Government 2%
2 FTSE 100 1%

3 PLC/nationals  56%
4 Regional multiples 6%
5 Local fraders 35%

Lease profile

5

4
1

3

2
1 0-5 years 43%
2 B-10 years 23%
310-15 years 13%
4 15-20 years 10%
5 20 years+ 11%

As at 28th February 2007

Location profile
4

=]

1 South East 54%

2 North 20P%
3 London 25%
4 South West 1%
Analysis by sector
3

2

1
1 Retail 7%
2 Industnal 15%
3 Office 15%
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Sustainability report

We believe that maintaining our long-term
financial performance depends on our
corporate reputation

Therefore, the social, economic and
environmental impacts of our business are
crucial to overall success Our sustainability
programme 15 developed in conjunction with
our adwvisors, Faber Maunsell, and our actmtes
are internally reviewed on an annual hasis

Principal objectives

Corporate

= Complying, as a mimimum benchmarl,
with all relevant legislation and working
towards good prachice in sustainability

- Seeking continuous improvement in
perfarmance and reporting progress
on a regular basis

- Communicating our progress both
internally and externally

Urban regeneration

- Seeking to ennch and improve
communthes

~ As part of a mixed portfolio, develop
mixed-use projects contnbuiing to
and creating diverse and balanced
communities

- Developing retatonships with and
engaging with local stakeholders on
our approach to sustainability

Youth and education

- Sponsoring and supporbing youth
programmes

~ Co-operating in educational inthatives
to improve skills and trarming

The environment

- Controlling and managing waste on
our developments.

- Reducing energy and water consumption
In our investment properties and
development sites

- Centinue dewising travel to work plans
for our developments

Health & safety

- Implementing our Health & Safety policy,
thereby ensunng the health and safety
of our employees and wsitors

- Through haison with contractors applying
best practice procedures on our
development sites

The arts
- Sponsonng and supporiing project-related
inhatives

The property industry

- Contnbuting through debate and
sponsorship to the better working
of the industry

Our sustainability targets can be found on
our website www developmentsecunties com

The following describes a few of the key
achievements this year

Environment

Curing 2006, environmental concerns and
1ssues of social echesion atiained an ever
higher profile. Our industry has been affected
by these concerns In particular, n the course
of 2008, the 1ssue of carbon emissions
became a much higher pnonty for the
occupier market, as well as for society at

large For our industry, this means a step
change, a responsible approach to CO2
emisston reduction now leads direcily to
commercial competitive advantage Once
agan new construction at PaddingtonCentral
has achieved an Excellent BREEAM rating,
the world's most widely used environmental
assessment method for bulldings As reported
last year, we are focusing more closely on
one particular 1ssue of concern o our industry,
namely the control and management of
waste generated by the constructicn process
At One Kingdom Street, Paddington our
confractor, Skanska, reports that as a result
of our combined inhatives, 7 per cent of
waste generated at PaddingtonCentral has
been recycled from site, with & further 27 per
cent being sent o a transfer station for further
recycling This means that only 03 per cent
of the waste from this site has gone to landfill
(see figure 1 opposite)

Highlights this year also include the prowvision
of land at Broughton to create a 10-acre
nature reserve adjacent to our development
sites, the contnuing management of green
travel plans at the Royal Docks, London and
Cambourne, Cambridge, and the use of
innovative pilng and bore hole technology

i our latest hotel and office bulldings at
PaddingtonCentral
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Figure 1 - Total site waste at PaddingtonCentral (m?)
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Urban regeneration
Three of our projects rate a parbcutar mention
in relaticn to urban regeneration in 2006

Onental City, 389 Edgware Road,
Cofindale, London, NW This mixed-use
scheme on an unexceptional part of the
Edgware Road will combine Chinese and
other Far Eastern community uses, retail
and 500 new housing units Development
Secunties will also develop its first school,
o accommodate 420 puptls

Curzon Park, Brmingham 14 million sq ft.
of offices and apartments 1s planned for
this run-down area where we are working
with Birmingham City Council’s broad
regenerabion objectives, which include the
provision of a significant new public park.

- Broughton, Flintshire We continue to work
with Flintshire Distnct Council to provide
better transport links and infrastructure for
the community as well as affordable housing

Youth and education

We were delighted to continue to support the
Ascension Eagles, a cheerleading team from
East London, who are also Bnhsh Champions
We were happy to support this ambitious
undertaking which promotes fitness and
social interaction among young people in
Newham

We were also able to work with Richard
House Children's Hospice, organising with
them a float for the Lord Mayor's Show
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Michael Marx (Aged 59)

Chief Execulive and Finance Director
Appointed to the Board in September 1994
A Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a
Member of the UK Listing Authonty Advisory
Committee 2004 to 2007 Nen-executve
Chairman of Nationwide Accident Repar
Services PLC

Julan Barwick (Aged 53)

A Fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors Joined the Board in May 1998
Formerly property adwisor to the Bedford
Estate from 1997 to 2003, Chairman of the
Paddington Regeneration Partrership from
2000 to 2002 and Board Member of the
Britsh Counail for Offices Appointed to the
Board of London & Continental Railways
Limited in 2005

Matthew Weiner (Aged 36)

Appointed in March 2004 A Mermber of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Joned Development Secunities PLC in
November 2000 as Drrector of Investments
A member of the Universiiy of Reading Real
Estate Advisory Board and Trustee of the
Manor House Trust

Chatrman and Non-executive Directors
Roy Dantzic (Aged 62)

Apponted Charman in September 2003
Joined the Board as a Non-executve Director
in May 2003 A member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Scotland After
spending the early part of his career in the
City, joined the Board of Stanhope Properties
PLC in 1989 Was Managing Director of
Bntish Gas Properties from 1996 to 2003

Is Non-executive Chairman of Intencr
Services Group PLC, Non-executive Director
of Airplanes Limited and Blenheim Bishop
Limited, a Council Member of the Architectural
Hentage Fund, a Trustee of the Portman
Estate and a former Member of the
Govemnment's Property Advisory Group

David Jenkins (Aged 62)

Appointed in February 2007 A Feliow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales Prewiously a pariner in Deloitte &
Touche LLP, London and was Managing
Partner of their Real Estate Practice untl his
retirement in May 2004 A Drrector of MITIE
Group PLC and Renewable Energy Systems
Limited He 15 also adwisor to several companies
and 15 a Govermor of Downe House School

Paul Manduca {Aged 55)

Appointed in August 2001 Former Chief
Executive Officer of Deutsche Asset
Management Europe until the end of March
2005 and a former Director of MEPC PLC
Currently Non-executive Chairman of
Bndgewell Group PLC and a Birector of Wm
Mornson Supermarkets PLC, AON UK Limited,
JPMF Euro Fledgling Investment Trust PLC,
KazMunaiGaz E&P and other companies.

Victoria Mitchell (Aged 56)

Apponted in August 2002 Currently
Consultant Chrector io Sawills PLC, Non-
executive Director of The Berkeley Group
Holdings PLC and The Golding Group (South
Afnca) Member of ING REIM Residential
Property Fund Adwisory Board Trustee and
Director of The Landmark Trust. Formerly an
Executive Director of Savills PLC from 1988
to 2000

Michael Soames {Aged 56)

Apponted in August 2002 The Surveyor o
The Mercers' Company and previously Group
Corporate Development Direcior of Regus
PLC and pariner of Knight Frank A Non-
executive Director of the ISIS Property Trust
Limited A Fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and past President of
the Bntish Council for Offices
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report
and the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December 2006

Principal activities

The principal actmties of the Group dunng the
year were property development, investment
and trading

Business review

A review of the Group's operations, the
current siate of the business and future
prospects are contamned in the Chairman’s
statement and Review of operations and
should be read in conjunchion with this report
The information which compnses the Business
review as required by Section 2347278 of the
Companes Act 1985 may be found in the
Review of operations on pages 12 to 20 and
in the Sustanability report on pages 22 and 23

Results and dividends

The profit for the financial year attnbutable
to shareholders amounted to £23,559,000
(2005 £20,090,000} An intenm Ordinary
dividend of £828,000 representing 2 25
pence per Ordinary share was pad on

26th October 2006 (2005 £778,000,
representing 2 12 pence per Ordinary share)
The Board recommends a final Ordinary
dwmdend of 450 pence per Ordinary share
amounting o £1,832,000 be payable on

6th July 2007 to shareholders on the
register at 8th June 2007 (2005 £1,562,000
representing 4 25 pence per Ordinary share)

Group structure
Details of pnncipal subsichary undertakings
are disclosed on page 50

Share capital

On 29th November 2006, 3,700,000
Ordinary shares were allotted followang Placing
at 625 pence per Ordinary share, raising gross
proceeds of £23,125,000 pnncipally to fund
the Company’s share of the consideration
payable for the purchase of a 14 milkon sq ft
site at Curzon Park, Birmingham i an equal
Joint venture with Grainger PLC,

Three resolutions relating to share capital

will be proposed as Special Business at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting The
full text of the resoluhions can be found In the
enclosed Notice of Annual General Meeting

Special Resolution 8 The current authonity
for the Company to purchase its own shares
expires at the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting A special resolution
15 to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting to authonse the repurchase of

up to 8,066,000 Ordinary 50 pence shares,
representing approximately 149 per cent

of the Company's issued share capital The
Directors have no present intention of making
any market purchases of the Company's
shares, but if they considered such action
would enhance net assels or earnings per
share, they would consider exercising this
authonty As at the date of this report, the
Company has an unexpired authority to
repurchase 5,473,000 Ordinary shares

Ordinary Resolution © The Directors will seek
authonty to allot relevant secunhes pursuant
to Section 80 of the Compames Act 1985
up to a maxsimum aggregate nominal value

of £7,058,899 being equal to one-third of
the i1ssued Ordinary share capital of the

Company, together with the number of share
options cutstanding

Special Resolubon 10 The Directors seek
authonty to renew the disapphication of
shareholders' pre-emptive nghts under Section
89 of the Companies Act 1985 up to an
aggregate nominal value of £1,017,791 being
equal to 50 per cent of the 1ssued Ordinary
share capital of the Company In the event
that 1t 15 used, no more than 75 per cent of
the 1ssued share capital will be 1ssued on a
non pre-emptive basis in any three-year penod

Share option schemes

During the year, options over 40,000 shares
were granted under the Executive Share
Option Plan 2005 and 25,368 options under
the Company's Save As You Earn Option
Plan 2005 Further details of the Share
Option Schemes are contaned on page 56
and tn the Remuneration report on pages 68
e 75

Directors
The Drrectors serving dunng the year were
as follows

Roy Dantzic Willlam Grant - resigned
Michael Marx 11th May 2006

Julan Barwick Paul Manduca

Matthew Wemner  Paul Willls — resigned
Victona Mitchell  6th March 2007

Michae! Soames

Dawvid Jenkins was appointed to the Board
as & Non-executive Director on 1st February
2007 Roy Dantzic, who joined the Board on
21st May 2003 and was elected Charman
on 17th September 2003 has resolved to
stand down at the 2007 Annual General
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Meeting Dawd Jenkins will be appainted
Charman as from this date, provided he 15
elected at the Annual General Meeting The
Directors retinng by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting are Michael Marx and
Matthew Weiner, who being eligible, offer
themselves for re-elechon

Directors’ service contracts and
interests in the Company'’s shares

The unexprred penod of Directors’ service
contracts and the interests of the Directors
who were in office as at 31st December
2006 are fully disclosed in the Remuneration
report on pages 68 to 75

Directors’ and officers’ kability insurance
The Company mantains Directors' and
officers’ kability insurance, which 1s reviewed
annually and 1s considered to be adequately
insured

Other substantial interests

At the date of this report, the Directors have
been notfied of the following interests in 30
per cent or more of the Company’s 1ssued
share capital

Report of the Directors
Development Secuntes PLC
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Financial nsk management
Dusclosures in respect of financial risk
management objectives and exposures
are set outin note 16 on page 53 and B4

Charitable and poltical donations
Chantable donations dunng the year,
principally to local chanties serving the
communities in which the Group operates,
were £26,100 (2005 £24,800) No political
donations were made dunng the year
(2005 NIl

Disabled employees

It 1s the Group's policy to encourage good
employment practices with regard {o the
disabled :n accordance with Government
recommended guidelines

Payment policy

Amounts due to suppliers are settled
promptly within their terms of payment,
except in cases of dispute The number of
creditor days outstanding for the Company
at 31st December 2006 was two days
(2005 one day)

Number of shares %
F & C Asset Management PLC 4494071 1104
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC 3,194,000 785
BT Pension Scheme Trustees Limited as
trustee of the BT pension scheme 2,241,370 550
Standard Life Group PLC 2,148613 528
Legal & General Group PLC 1,423,795 349
Prudential PLC Group of Companies 1,401,086 344
Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP 1,305,000 321

Auditors

A resolution to appoint Ernst & Young LLP
as the Company's auditors will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each Dwector has confirmed that

1 So far as he/she 15 aware, there 15 no
relevant audit information of which the
Group's auditors are unaware, and,

2 He/she has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a Director n order
to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit nformation and to establish that the
Group’s auditors are aware of that
information

This confirmation 1s given in accordance with
Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

Approved by thegBoard of Directors
Signpdfn alf by
Lanes

Secretary
30th March 2007
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Corporate governance

The Company complied throughout the
financial year with the code provisions
set out In Section 1 of the June 2006
FRC Combined Code on Corporate
Governance, except that with effect from
8th December 2005, no member of the
Audit Committee 1s considered to have
recent and relevant financial experience
as required under code provision C31

The Board

The Board discusses and makes decisions
relating to, but not limited to, strategy,
executive performance and retention,
remunerabon and succession, financial
performance, development opportunities,
investment portfolio acquisitons and
disposals, corporate reputation and
communication, internal control and nsk
management and the Board's own
effectiveness It delegates certan defined
tasks and responsibilities both to its vanous
Committees, which report to the Board, and
to individual Executive Directors

The Board, which met 11 tmes during
the year, currently consists of the five
Non-executive Directors, each of whom 15
considered to be independent, and three
Executive Directors One of the Board
meetings was specfically reserved to
consider corporate strategy and two were
held to consider the Placing

All Directors have access to the services

of the Company Secretary and may seek
independent professional advice, as
necessary, at the Company’s expense and
subject to the consent of the Chairman

Upon election, or re-election, Non-executives
are invited to serve for three-year fixed terms
Their terms of appoiniment are available from
the Company Secretary Directors may
receve appropnate trainng on introduction
and whilst in office W Grant remained as the
Senior Independent Director until his stepping
down as a Director on 11th May 2008,
whereupon he was replaced in the role by
PV S Manduca

The Chairrman and the Non-executve
Directors met on one occaston dunng the year
with no Executive Directors in attendance In
addition, the Senior Independent Director also
met on one occasion with the Non-executive
Directors, without the Charrman or Executive
Directors present, to consider inter alia the
appraisal of the Charman’s performance

The Board has undertaken a performance
evaluation of the Board dself, each of its
Committees and of its indmdual Directors This
was conducted by queshonnaire co-crdinated
by the Company Secretary The overall
conclusions were considered by the Board

and areas of significance have been addressed
The Non-execubive Directors, led by the Seruor

Independent Cirector separately considered the
performance evaluation of the Chairman, taking
account of the views of the Executve Directors.

The Board has established a number of

Standing Committees

- The Audt Committee compnses PV §
Manduca as Charrman and V M Mitchell
Neither of the present members of the
Commitiee are considered to have recent
and relevant financiat experience

- The Nomiwnation Committee compnses
R M Dantzic as Charman, PV S Manduca
and M H Marx If elected as a Director at
the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting, O
S Jenkins will assume the role as Chairman
of the Committee following R M Dantaic’s
stepping down as a Director

- The Remuneration Committee comprises
M S Soames as Chairman and V M
Mitchell W Grant was Chairman of the
Committee untik 11th May 2006 The
Committee 1s authonsed to determine
remuneration policy, including the exercise
of powers to grant options under the
Group's option schemes to the Executive
Directors and senior management and to
determine the annual bonus, awards under
the Development Profit Plan and the
Development Secunties PLC Investment
Growth Plan 2006, ad hoc bonuses for
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exceptional contributions and awards
under the Development Securities PLC
Performance Share Plan 2006 The
Remunreration report to shareholders
can be found on pages 68 to 75

— The Approvals Committee compnises
M H Marx, C J Barwick and a mimimum
of any two Non-executive Directors Its
remit 1s to permit the approval of certan
transactions between £2 million and
£5 million, which are then reported to
the Board at its next meeting Those
transactions below this level are delegated
to the relevant Executive Directors
responsible The terms of reference of
the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees, as determined by the
Board, are available upon request from
the Company Secretary and are also
published on the Company's website
www developmentsecurtties com

Details of the Non-executive Director service
contracts are detailed in note {1) of the
Remuneration report on page 72

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s responsible, inter alta,
for recommending the appointment of the
external auditors, the Group's accounting
pohcies, and manitors the treatment of areas

Corporate governance
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of mayor judgement in the Group's financial
statements Furthermore, 1t acts as a conduit
between the Board and the external auditors

As a minimum, the Audit Committee meets
three times during each financial penod, of
which one meeting i1s to determine the terms
of engagement, proposed programme and
fees payable to the audrtors for the annual
audit. The other meetings take place prior to
the 1ssue of the preliminary full-year results
and intenm results, in order to consider any
significant ssues ansing from the audit and
review processes

Following a therough market testing of three
major firms of accountants, Ernst & Young
LLP was selected by the Audit Committee as
the new auditer in place of Deloitte & Touche
LLP, which had audited the Company since
1883 The appointrment of Emst & Young
LLP was subsequently ratified by the Board
A further meeting of the Audit Committee
was held during the year to consider the
technical 1ssues associated with IFRS

Apart from conducting the annual audt, Emst &
Young LLP was also engaged dunng the year
to conduct a review of the intenm results to
30th June 2006. Due to the imited scope of
these addional actmties, and not being

ergaged In providing tax advisory, complance
or planning servaces, the auditors' objectvity and
independence Is not considered to be impaired

In forming ts opinion of the independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of the external
auditors, the Audit Committee takes into
account the safeguards operating within Emst
& Young LLP Regard is given to the nature
of remuneration recewed for other services
provided by Ernst & Young LLP to the
Campany and, nter alia, confirmation 1s
sought from them that the fee payable for the
annual audit 1s adequate to enable them to
fulfil their obligations in accordance with the
scope of the audit

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee's principal

role 15 to evaluate the structure, size and
composition of the Board, preparing a
succession plan for the appoiniment of
members, both Executive and Non-executive,
which 1s then fulfilled through an effectve
search, interview and evaluation pracess

The Nomination Committee did not meet
dunng the year However, at a meeting held in
February 2007, the principal 1ssues were the
appointment of David Jenkins as a Non-
executive Director and acknowledgment of
the stepping down of Roy Dantaic, as Charman
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Relations with shareholders

The Executwe Directors have regular dialogue
with instituhional sharehcolders The Company
has notified the 20 pancipal iInsbtutional
shareholders that the Chairman, the Senior
Independent Director ar any of the Non-
executive Directors are available at any tme
to meet with them The Company's Annual
General Meeting provides an opportumity

to respond to sharehclders' appropriate
questions Directors are introduced to
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting,
including the dentification of Non-executives
and Committee Chairmen

Interna! control

The Drrectors acknowledge their responsibility
for the Group's system of internal control

and for reviewing its effectiveness The nisk
review process Is designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the nisk of falure to achieve
business objectives and can only prowde
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal missiatement or loss

The Board has conducted a thorough nsk
assessment of the business, identifying nsks,
thew potential impact, likelihood of occurrence,
controls and mitigating actions, together with
early wamning systems and further actions
which need to be implemented

The regular process of identifying, evaluating
and managing significant nsks has been
delegated by the Board to a Risk Committee,
consisting of M H Marx as Charrman,

C J Barwick, M S Weiner and two
Executives, R C McCubbine and C Chnstofi
R C McCubbine replaced R H Pearse on

Corparate govemance
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the Committee on 2Cth June 2006 The
Commitiee meets quarterly dunng the year
to ensure that the nsk control procedures
are further embedded within the cutture

of the Company The minutes of the
Committee's deliberations are reviewed

by the Board

A ‘whistleblowing policy’ has been prepared
and issued to all staff in the Group, outlining
arangements by which they may, in confidence,
raise concerns about possible improprieties in
matters of financial reporting or other matters

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters
reserved for its decision, which includes

the level of indvidual transactions which

are approved by the Board and those which
may be delegated The roles and remit of the
Chairman, Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors are set out in writing and agreed by
the Board

The Board, following a recommendaton from
the Audit Committee, has considered the
need for an internal audit function, but has
resolved that, due to the size of the Company
and the nsk review process evident through
the Risk Committee, this cannot be justified
at present The Board will review this decision
next year

The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control
for the year ended 31st December 2006 and
to the date of this report and considers that
there 1s an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Group’s significant

nsks including financial, operational and
comphance controls and a nsk management
system, that 1t has been in place for the year
ended 31st December 2006 and up to the
date of approval of these financial statements,
that it is regularly reviewed by the Board and
that it accords with the Financial Reporting
Council Internal Control Revised Guidance for
Dwectors on the Combined Code dated
October 2005

Going concern

The Directors, having made enguines, have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources io
continue in operatton for the foreseeable
future, and that &t 1s appropnate to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng the financial
statements This statement also forms part of
the Review of operations on pages 12 to 20

Statement of Directors’ responsibilites in
respect of the Annual Report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report, including the Directors’
report, and the Group and Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with
apphcable United Kingdom law and regulations

The Dwectors are required to prepare Group
financial statements for each financial year
in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, which present fairly the
financial position of the Group and the
financial performance and cash flows of the
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The following table identifies the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the Board and
the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees held during 2006

Audit Nominaton Remuneration
Board Committee Comemitiee Committee
Number of meetings 1 5 0 5
R M Dantzic 10 4
M H Marx 11 4]
C J Barwick 1
P J Wilis 11
M S Weiner 11
W Grant ~ resigned 11th May 2006 4 2
PV 5 Manduca 10 5 0
M S Soames 1 5
¥V M Mitchell 10 5 4

Group for that penod In prepanng those
Group financial statements, the Directors
are required to

- select sutable accounting policies in
accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’ and then apply them consistently,

- present information, including accounting
policies, n a manner that provides relevant,
relable, comparable and understandable
nformation,

- provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific requirements
of IFRSs ts nsufficient to enable users
ta understand the impact of particutar
transactions, other events and conditions
on the Group's financial position and
financial performance, and

~ state that the Company has complied with

IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial
statements

Under United Kingdom company law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements 1n accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law),
which are required by law to give a true and
far view of the state of affars of the Parent
Company and of the profit or loss of the
Parent Company for that pencd In prepanng
the Parent Company financial statements, the
Directors are reguired to

- select sutable accounting pohcies and then
apply them consistently,

— make judgements and estimates that are
reascnable and prudent,

— state whether applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

— prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless 1t 1s nappropnate
to presume that the Company will continue
In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting recards which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posttion of the Group and the
Cornpany and enable them fo ensure

that the financial staterments comply with

the Compamies Act 1985 and Article 4 of

the LAS regulation They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the system of internal conrol and
for the prevention,and detection of fraud and
other larty

By order of the Board
S ALanes

Secretary

30th March 2007
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Group independent auditors’ report

Independent auditors' report to the members of Development
Secunities PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Development
Securities PLC for the year ended 3 1st December 2006 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the
Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense and the related notes 1 to 24 These Group
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financal
statements of Development Secunties PLC for the year ended
31st December 2006 and on the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Sechion 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Cur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors' report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilty to anyone
other than the Company and the Campany's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors' responsibiibies for preparnng the Annual Report and the
Group financeal statements in accordance with apphcable United
Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilties

Qur responsibility 15 to audit the Group financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial
statements give a true and far view and whether the Group financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also
report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors' report 1s consistent with the financral statements The
information given in the Directors’ report includes that speafic
information presented in the Review of Operations and Sustamability
report that 1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the
Directors' report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not recerved all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding Director's remuneration and
other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the
Company's compliance with the nine prowisions of the 2006 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
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Services Authonty, and we report f it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all
nsks and controls, ar form an opimon on the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance procedures or its nsk and control
procedures

We read other information contained n the Annual Report and
consider whether 1t 15 consistent with the audited Groug financial
statements The other information compnses only the Directors' Report,
the Charman's Statement, the Rewew of operations and the Corporate
Governance Statement We consider the imphcations for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Cur
responsibiities do not extend {o any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practces Board An
audt includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements It also
includes an assessment of the significant estmates and judgments
made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group's crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the
Group financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other uregulanty or error In forming our
opnion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation

of informaticn in the Group financial statements

Opinion

In cur opinicn

- the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the
state of the Group's affairs as at 31st December 2006 and of iis
profit for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation, and

- the information given in the Directors’ report 1s consistent with the

Group financial staiements
(
r~ P

Emst & Young LLP
Registered Auditor
London

30th March 2007
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Continuing operations
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2006 2005

restated

Nates £'000 £000

Revenue 3 48,727 25488
Direct costs 3 (32,776) (15218)
Gross profit 3 15951 10,250
Operating costs 3 (10257) (10538)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of investment properiies 3 (97 3728
Gain on revaluation of property portfolio 11 21,821 18028
Deficit on revaluation of operating properties 10 (475) (174)
Operating profit 4 26,943 217294
Share of results of associates and jont ventures 12 151 1,453
Income from financial assets 63 149
Profit on disposal of investments 2 - 5,759
Profit before interest and taxation 3 27157 28655
Finance income 6 2,854 2,262
Finance costs 6 (7,321) (7,667)
Profit before taxation 22,790 23250
Taxation 7 769 (3,160)
Profit after taxation attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 23559 20090
Basic earmings per share 9 634p 548p
Diluted earnings per share 9 63 0p 54 5p

‘Refer to note 1(g)
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As at 31st December 2006
2006 2005
restated
Notes £000 £000 £000 2000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
- Operating properties 10 8,090 9,000
~ Other property, plant and equipment 10 3,618 3,776
Investment properties 11 139461 159,668
Financial assets 12 5,881 755
Investments in joint ventures 12 20,464 -
Investments in asscciates 12 673 1,165
Trade and other recevables 14 1,468 1,420
Deferred tax assels 17 5619 4387
185,274 180,071
Investment property — held for sale 11 5,299 -
Current assets
Inventory - developments and trading properties 13 74,663 56,479
Trade and other recewvables 14 10,014 9877
Cash and short-term deposits 88,536 73,004
173,213 139,250
Total assets 363,786 319,321
Current habihties
Trade and other payables 15 (16,747 (15014
Financial habilities i6 {15515) (B8,204)
(32,262) (21218)
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilihes 16 (87419) (98,632)
Deferred tax liabilibes 17 (11,637 (10,434)
Provisions 15 (1,055) (1,529)
(100,111} (110,595)
Total habilities (132,373) (131,813)
Net assets 231,413 . 187,508
Equity
Share capital 18 20,356 18,361
Share premium 19 108,850 87,635
Revaluaticn reserve 19 853 335
Other reserves 19 45,793 45,793
Retaned earnings 19 55,561 35,384
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent 231,413 187,508
Basic net assets per share g 568p 510p
Diluted net assets per share 9 565p 507p

Approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors or 30th March 2007 and signed on its behalf by

M H Marx
Director

* Refer note 1(g)
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2006 2005
restated
£000 £000
Gamns on revaluation of operating properties 518 321
Deferred tax (refer note 1(q)) (992) (2,600
Met loss recogmised directly in equity 474) (2279
Profit for the pernod 23,559 20080
Total recognised income for the penod attnibutable to equity shareholders of the parent 23,085 17811
Impact of adoption of IAS32 and IAS39 at 1st January 2005 - 15
Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31st December 2006
2006 2005
i Notes £'000 £000
Net cash flow from operating activities 20 (17,977 (32261)
Investing activities
Interest receved 3,057 2170
Cividends receved from associated undertaking - 149
Proceeds from sale of shares in associated undertaking - 13,396
Proceeds from redemption of preference shares held in associated undertaking - 1,500
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33 -
Proceeds on disposal of nvestment properbes 45,076 30078
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,547) (876)
Investment in participating loan (5,000) -
Purchase of investment properbes (6,928) (11.94b)
Purchase of investments (20,190) (1,165)
Net cash from investing activities 14,501 33307
Financing activibes
Dimndends paid (2,390)  (2,245)
Issue of new shares 23,210 245
Repayments of borrowings (18,729)  (5,169)
New bank loans raised 11,973 25830
Increase/(decrease) in bank overdrafis 4,854 (379)
Net cash from financing activities 18,918 18282
Net increase in short-term deposits 15442 19328
Cash and short-term deposits at the beginning of the year 73094 53766
Cash and short-term deposits at the end of the year 88,536 73094
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and shori-term deposits excluding pledged cash 81,588 43351
Pledged cash held as securty aganst financial habilibes 6,948 24743
Cash and short-term deposits at the end of the year 88536 73094
Bank overdrafts (5,929) {1075
Cash and cash equivalents 82607 72015

Refer note 1(g)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 3 1st December 2006

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of accounting

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2006 and applied n accordance with
the Comparues Act 1985 The accounting policies which follow set aut those policies which apply in prepanng the financial statements for the
year ended 31st December 2006 and 3 1st December 2005

The accounts were approved by the Directors for 1ssue on 30th March 2007 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles requires the use of esbmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these esimates

are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ulimately may differ from those estmates

The key areas where such judgements are made are in the valuation of the investment, development and trading property portfolios and the
recognition of development revenues and profits The recognition of development revenues is described in note 1{¢) below In making sts
judgement, management has considered the detaled cnitena set out in IAS 11 'Construction contracts’ and IAS 18 'Revenue’ Determining
development revenues and profits requires an estimate of development costs, construction progress and letting actvity The accounting policies
n respect of the valuation of the property portfolio are set out in note 1{e) and 1(f) below Key judgements relating to such valuations include
eshmates of future rental income and yields

The Group financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except when
otherwise stated

IASE and IFRIC have 1ssued new standards and interpretations with an effective date after the date of these financial statements
The standards and interpretations considered to be relevant by the Directors are

International Accounting Standards {IAS/IFRSs) Effective date
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures 1 January 2007
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
IAS 1 Amendment — Presentation of Financial Statements Capital Disclosures 1 January 2007

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 1 May 2006

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a2 matenal impact on the Group's financial
statements in the pencd of initral application

Upan adoption of [FRS 7, the Group will have to disclose additional information about its financial instruments, their significance and the nature
and extent of nsks that they give nse to, including the fair value of its financial instruments and its nisk exposure in greater detail There will be
no effect on reported income or net assets.

b} Basis of consolidation !
1} The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of Development Secunties PLC {the Company), its
subsidianes and the Group's share of profits and losses and net assets of jointly controlled entrities and associated undertakings

Where necessary, adjusiments have been made to the financial statements of subsidianies, associates and jointly controlled entities to bang
the accounting policies used and accouning penods into ine with those used by the Group

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gans and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated \
financial statements '

) The results of subsidianes acquired during the year are included from the effective date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group |
obtains control Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method Any excess of the purchase pnce of the business
combination over the farr value of the assets and labiitres acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any discount received 1s credited to the
income statement in the penod of acquisition
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

c) Revenue

Revenue, which excludes value added tax, represents

1) the sales proceeds of trading properties, undeveloped land and building units held as inventory and sold dunng the year, which are
recagnised on completion,

n} rental ncome is calculated on a straight Iine basis, and excludes sales of investment properties Any incentives for lessees to enter into lease
agreements are spread evenly over the periods to the earlier of lease expiry and any tenant option to break, where that option 1s expected
to be exercised,

) trading mcome from operating properties 1s calcutated on a straight line basis and compnses licence fee Income and revenue from other
services provided,

w) development revenue and profits are recognised in accordance with the terms of development agreements where apphcable and in
accordance with IAS 11 'Construction contracts’ and JAS 18 'Revenue’ so as to match the proportion of development wark completed
Profits are only recognised where the development is sufficiently complete and the outcome can be determined with reasonable certainty
Full prowision 1s made for foreseeable losses as soon as such losses are identified,

v} project management fee iIncome Is recognised on a straight line basis over the term for which project management services are provided
as the Group's farr estimate of the value of work completed,

vi) finance income 1s recognised by reference to the principal outstanding and prevailing mterest rate applicable, and

vi) dnvdend income from investments 1s recognised when the Group's nght to recewve income has been established

d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associated company 1s defined as an underiaking other than a subsidary or jointly controlled entity In which the Group holds a long-term
interest and has the power to exercise significant influence The Group's investments in associates are accounted for in the consclidated financial
statements using the equity method The Group's share of the profits and losses of associated undertakings are shown in the consoldated income
statement while the Group’s share of the net assets of associated undertakings is shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group does not
equity account for further losses from investments in associated companies where the investment is held at mil value after prowvisions for mparment.

A joindly controlled entity 15 defined as an undertakung other than a subsidiary or associated undertaking in which the Group has the power to exercise
significant influence and which 1s jointly controlled by two or more venturers under a contractual arangement. The Group's share of the post-acquistion
results of jointly controlled entihes 1s shown In the consolidated income statement. Investments in jointly controlled entities are included in the
consohdated balance sheet at cost plus the appropnate share of post-acquistion results and reserves less prowsions for any imparment

e) Investment properties

1) Investment properties are those properties that are held either {o earn rental mcome or for capital appreciation or both Investment properiies
may be freehold or leasehold properhes For leasehold properties that are classified as investment properties, the associated leasehold
obligations are accounted for as finance lease obligations )

) Investment properties are revalued each year on the basis of Market Value, unless the market value cannot be reliably estmated, n which
case the assets are carned at cost Surpluses and deficits ansing are recognised in the consohidated income statement for the period

m) Profits and losses on disposal of investment properties are calculated by reference to book value and recognised on completion

) Investment properties in the course of development are accounted for as investment properties, where these properties have previously
been classified as investment assets

v) Investment property held for sale 1s carned at farr value less seling costs

f) Property, plant and equipment

) Operating properties
Operating properties are those properties classified as owner-occupied and held for business purposes rather than for investment, generating
revenue by way of licence fees and ancillary services These properties are revalued each year by independent, professional valuers on the
basis of Existing Use Value Surpluses and deficits in the period are included in a Revaluation reserve, except where carrying value 1s below
depreciated cost, in which case surpluses and defioits are included in the Consolidated income statement. Depreciation is provided so as to
wnite off the value of the properties, excluding land, over thetr expected useful lives

) Other property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impaiment. Depreciation 1s provided so as to
write off the cost less estimated residual value of the assets over ther expecied useful lives The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows

Fixtures and fittngs — 10% to 33%
Motor vehuctes - 20%

g) Leases
Rental payments under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease even if the payments are not made on
such a basis
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h) Inventory — developments in progress and trading properties

Developments and properties held as trading assets, are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value The cost of property
developments including net cutgoings and attnbutable interest are accumulated i Inventory, up to the date of completion Costs ansing from
development actwvity are caprtalised from commencement of active development until cessation of such actvity

1) Taxation
Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates applicable at the belance sheet date, together with
any adjustment in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method Deferred tax liabilihes are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent
that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences or unutihlsed tax losses can be utibsed Such
temporary differences are not recognised if they anse from goodwill (or negative goodwall) or from the intial recognition {other than

in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred income tax assets and labilities are measured at the iax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Income tax relating
to items recogrused directly in equity 1s recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

) Financial assets and financial kabilihes
Financial assets and Financial hailibes are recognised on the Group's batance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms
of the instrument
1) Trade and other recevables are recognised mtially at farr value and subsequently at amortised cost. A prowsion for estimated irecoverable
amounts of trade receivables is established where there 15 evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according o
the oniginal terms of the recevables concerned,
n} Trade and other payables are recognised imtially at fair value and thereafter at amortised cost,
u) cash and cash equvalents compnse cash balances, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term hughly hquid investments with
onginal maturthes of three months or less and ne significant nsk of changes in value Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and
which form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the staterment of cash flows, '
) interest beanng loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of direcily atinbutable arrangement costs, and subsequently
remeasured at amortrsed cost. Such directly attnbutable costs are realised in the Income statement at a constant rate on carrying value,
v) the Group recognises the far value of its dervative financial iInstruments including interest rate swaps on the Balance sheet and movements
on those values within the Income statement, and
v)) where an asset is imparred, an appropnate impairment provision 1s recogmsed |

k) Borrowing costs

Gross borrowing costs relating to direct expenditure on Investment properties and inventories under development or undergoing major
refurbishment are capitalised The interest capitalised 15 caleulated using the Group's weighted average cost of borrowings over the penod from
commencement of the development work untl the date of practical completion The capitalisation of Finance costs s suspended if there are
prolonged periods when development actmty s interrupted

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Group's Income statement in the penod n which they are ncurred

I) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme The charge to the Consolidated income statement in the penod represents the actual
amount pad or payable to the scheme in the perod Differences between contribubions payable in the year and contributions paid are shown as
either accruals or prepayments in the Conschdated balance sheet

m) Foreign currencies

Transactions dencminated n foreign currencies are translated into Stering at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and habiikes denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the rates ruling at that date
Exchange movements are dealt with in the Consolidated income statement.
n) Share-based payments ‘

The cost of granting share options and other share-based remuneration to employees and Directors 1s recognised through the Consolidated
income statement The Group has used a Black-Scheles option valuation model and the resulting far value 1s amortised on a straight-line basis
through the Consoldated income statement over the vesting penod of the options

o} Dwidend distribution
Dividend distnbutions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a hability in the Group's financial statements in the penod it which the
dvdends are declared
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

p) Definibons

Operating profit stated after profit on disposal of investment properties and the revaluation of the property porifolio and befere the results
of associates, jointly controlled entities, finance income and costs

IPDIndex and Total Portfolio Return total return from the mvestment property portfolio, comprising net rental iIncome or expenditure and capital
gans or losses from disposals and revaluation surpluses or deficts, dvded by the average capital employed during the financeal penod,
as defined and measured by Investment Property Databank Limited, a company that produces mdependent benchmarks of property returns

IPD Initial Yield annualised current passing rent expressed as a percentage of the property valuation
Total Shareholder Return dividends plus annual growth in net assets

Gearing expressed as a percentage, 1s measured as net debt divided by fotal shareholders’ funds

(q) Prior year restatement
The Directors have made the following rewisions to the prior year financial statements i respect of the following items

Operating properties

Comparative figures for the year-ended 31st December 2006 have been restated to more accurately adopt IFRS requrements in respect of
certain leasehold properties The financial effect at 1st January 2005 1s a reduction in the net asset value of Operating properties of £1,348000,
a reducton in Revaluation reserve of £1,659,000 and a revaluation gain of £347,000 For the year ended 31st December 2005, the
depreciaiton charge in respect of Operating properties was reduced by £44,000 and the Revaluation gan reduced by £80,000

Deferred tax

The Directors have corrected an error in the computation of deferred tax in respect of the revaluation gan of an Operating property Accordingly, at
31st December 20065, Deferred tax liabilites have been restated and increased by £2.900,000 and Deferred tax assets have been restated and
increased by £300,000, with a corresponding net reduction in Retained reserves of 82,600,000 The impact on the deferred tax charge for the year
ended 3 1st December 2005 was a decrease of £300,000

Other reclassifications
Certain balances have been reclassified at 31st December 2005 to more fully comply with IFRS requirements

Lease incentwes, previously included within Investment property balances, are now separately identified within Prepayments and accrued income
The financial effect is a reduction in Investment properties of £878,000 and an increase in Prepayments and accrued incorme of £678,000,
as set out n notes 11 and 14

An investment in the loan notes of an associate, amounting to £755,000, previously classified as part of an Invesiment in the joint venture, was
reclassified at 31st December 2005 to Financial assets, as disclosed in note 12{(c)

Certain recewables, ameounting to £939,000 (2005 £798,000), were reclassified as Non-current assets from Current assets, increasing Non-
current recewvables and decreasing Current recewables by the same amount

The presentation of the Cash flow statement at 31st December 2005 has been reviewed to conform with the presentation adopted for
31st December 2006

2 DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING

On 23rd December 2005, the Group disposed of its investment in Stead & Simpson Group Limited The profit on disposal s presented in the
Consoldated ncome statement and 15 calculated by reference to the book value of the investment at the date of disposal, after accounting for
the Group's share of the associate’s results and the net asset value at 23rd December 2005

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
For management purposes, the Group 1s currently orgarised into three operating dwisions

Investment - management of the Group's investment property portfolio, generating rental income and valuation surpluses from
property management,

Trading and development — managing the Group's development projects Revenue 1s receved from project management fees and development
profits, and

Operating — serviced office operations and retall actvities Revenue 1s pnncipally receved from short-term licence fee income

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its pnmary segmental information All operations occur and all assets are located
in the United Kingdom, except assets of £1,394,000 (2005 £1,727,000), which are located n France and The Netherands Accordingly no
secondary segmental mformation 1s shown  All revenue anses from continuing operations
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Year ended 31st December 2006

Trading and
Investment development Operating Total
£'000 £'000 £2'000 £'000

Segment revenue

8995 34675 5057 48727

Direct costs (1,601) (26,195) (4980) (32776)
Segment result 7,394 8,480 77 15951
Unallocated operating costs (10,257)
Loss on disposal of mvastment properties Q7 - - {97)
Net gan/(loss) on revaluation of property portfolio 21,821 - {475} 21,346
Operating profit 096,943
Share of results of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 151
Income from financial assets 63
Profit before interest and taxation 27,157
Finance income 2954
Finance costs (7,321}
Profit before taxation 22,760
Taxation 769
Profit after taxation attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 23,559

Assets and habilities
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

205723 100006 13911 319640
44,146

Total assets

363,786

Segment habilities

(83771) (31,104) (2593) {117.468)

Unallocated liabilities {14,908)
Total habilites (132,373)
Other segment information

Capital expendrture 7,047 1,305 8352
Unallocated capital expenditure 242
Depreciation 982 982
Unallecated depreciation 146

Year ended 315t December 2006

Trading and

Investment development Operating Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue
Rental income 8,700 124 - 8824
Qperating property income - - 5057 5087
Project management fees - &87 - 587
Trading property sales - 25800 - 25800
Development profits - 8164 - 8,164
Other income 285 - - 295

8995 34675 5067 48727
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3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued
Year ended 315t December 2005 restated

Trading and
Investrnent development Operating Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Segment revenue 10,626 9,687 5166 25468
Direct costs {1,994y (8446} (4778) (15218)
Segment result 8632 1,241 377 14,250
Unallocated operating costs (10,538)
Profit on disposal of investment praperties 3728 - - 3,728
Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of property portfolio 18,028 - (174) 17,854
Operating profit 21,204
Share of results of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 1,453
Income from other fixed asset investments 149
Profit on disposal of investments 5,758
Profit before interest and taxation 28655
Finance income 2262
Finance costs (7,667)
Profit before taxation 23,250
Taxation (3,160)
Profit after taxation attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 20,080
Assets and habilities
Segment assets 226002 bH9bEB 11681 297251
Unallocated assets 22070
Tota) assets 319,31
Segment habilies {88715) (27,268) (2,439) (118422)
Unallocated habilties (13,391)
Total habilities {131813)
COther segment information
Capital expenditure 11,345 8 11,881
Unallocated capital expenditure 870
Depreciation (909) (909)
Unallocated depreciation (181)

Year ended 315t December 2005 restated

Trading and

Investment development Qperating Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue
Rental income 10585 11 - 10696
Qperating property income - - B,155 5,155
Project management fees - 266 - 266
Trading property sales - 9,135 - 9,135
Development profits - 175 - 175
Other income 4t - - 41

10626 9,687 51556 25468
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4 OPERATING PROFIT

2006 2005
restated
£000 £000

The profit from operations 15 stated after charging
Share-based payments expense 142 110
Depreciation — Operating property 330 307
Depreciation — Other property, plant and equipment 798 783
Auditors' remunératon  — audit of the financial statements 145 132
— audit related reporting 20 65

5 STAFFCOSTS

2006 2005
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 4,887 5462
Social secunty 541 633
Pension costs 425 416
5,853 6511

Included in wages and salanes 1s a tofal expense of share-based payments of £142,000 (2005 £110,000) all of which anses from transachons

accounted for as equity settled share-based payment transactions

Average weekly number of employees, including Directors, dunng the year

2006 2005
Number Number
Property development and investment 33 34
Operating property activihes 56 41
89 75
The Directors are considered to be the only key management personnel Ther remuneration 1s shown in the Remuneration report on pages
6810 75
6 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
2006 2008
£'000 £000
Finance costs
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings 5,622 5,693
Interest on Debenture 2,200 2200
Amortisation of arrangement costs f 230 232
Capitalised interest (731) {458)
7321 7,667
Finance income
Interest recewable (2954) (2,269
4,367 5405

Interest has been capitalised at a rate of 633% (2005 650%) Capitalised interest n the amount of £1,145,000 (2005 £181,000) was written

off in the year against gross profit
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7 TAXATION
2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Corporation tax on income at 30% (2005 30%) 2 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years 250 -
Total current tax charge 252 -
Deferred taxation (credit)/charge (1,021) 3,160
(769) 3,160
Deferred taxation expense for 2005 has been restated as set out in note 1(g)
2006 2005
restated
£000 £000
Analysis of (credit)/charge in the penod
Current tax 252 -
Deferred tax 503 3,160
Deferred tax (sale of investment property) (1,524) -
{769) 3,160
2006 2005
reslated
£000 £000
Tax on items charged to equity
Deferred tax credit in respect of share-based payments (240} (13}
Deferred tax on property revaluations : 1,232 -
992 (13}

The differences between the total current tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax fo the
profit befere tax are as follows

2006 2005

restated

£000 £000

Profit before taxation 22,790 23250
Tax on profit on ordinary actvibies at 30% (2005 30%) 6,837 6975
Permanent differences 713 396
Prior year movements (3,278) (4,196}
Indexation allowance (2,501) (1,464)
Other deferred tax movements (2,600) 1,449

(769) 3,160
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8 DIVIDENDS
20086 2005
£'000 £000
Declared and paid durning the year
Equity dvidends on Ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2005 4 25 pence per share {2004 400 pence per share) 1,562 1,467
Internm dvidend for 2006 225 pence per share (2005 2 12 pence per share) 828 778
2,390 2245
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
Final dmdend for 2006 4 50 pence per share (2005 425 pence per share) 1,832 1562

The final dwidend was approved by the Board on 27th March 2007 and has not been included as a lability or deducted from retaned profits
as at 31st December 2006 The final dvidend 1s payable on 6th July 2007 to Ordinary sharehclders on the register at the close of business on

8th June 2007 and wifl be recognised in 2007

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET ASSETS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dwiding profit for the year atinbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding duning the year

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dviding the profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be 1s3ued on
the conversion of all the dilutve potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data

2006 2005
restated
£000 £000
Earnings
Earmings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 23,559 20,090
2006 2005
£'000 £000
Number of shares
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 37,151 36,675
Effect of ditutive potential Ordinary shares
Share options 252 208
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 37403 36883
Basic earnings per share (pence) 634 548
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 630 545
Net assets per share and diluted net assets per share have been calculated as follows
2006 2005
restated
Net No.of  Net assets Net No.of  Netassets
assets shares per share assets shares per share
£'000 '000 pence £'00C '000 pence
Basic net assets per share 231,413 40,712 568 187508 36,722 510
Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary shares 2,086 ba7 (3} 2647 779 3
Diluted net assets per share 233,499 41,259 565 190,155 3750 507
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Long Short
Freehold leasehold leasehold Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At valuation 1st January 2005 8,154 1,697 15635 11,286
Prior year restatement in respect of operating leases (see note 1 (q)) - - (1535 (1535
As restated at 1st January 2005 8,154 1,597 - 9,751
Additions 6 - - 6
Disposals (71) - - (71)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation (174) 321 - 147
At valuation 31st December 2005 (restated) 7,915 1,918 - 9,833
Addihons 874 - - 874
Transfer of asset to nvestment properhes (1,652 - - (1,652)
(Defiait)/surplus on revaluation (478) 518 - 43
At valuation 31st December 2006 6,662 2,436 - 9,098
Depreciation
At 1st January 2005 404 122 187 713
Pror year restatement in respect of operating leases (refer note 1(g)) ~- - (187 (187)
As restated at 1st January 2005 404 122 - 526
Charge for the year 261 48 - 307
At 31st December 2005 (restated) 665 168 833
Charge for the year 262 68 - 330
Transfer of accumulated depreciation to investment properties {165} - - (155)
At 31st December 2006 772 236 - 1,008
Net book value 31st December 2006 5,890 2,200 - 8,090
Net book value 31st December 2005 7,250 1,750 - 9,000
Onginal cost of operating properties at 31st December 2006 5727 1,583 - 7,310
Ongnal cost of operating properties at 31st December 2005 8367 1,683 - 8,950

Operating properties with a net bock value of £8,090,000 (2005 £9,000,000) are charged as security against the Group's borrowings

(refer note 16)

The surplus on revaluation of £618,000 for the year ended 31st December 2006 15 credited to property revaluation reserve The revaluahion
defiat of £475,000 15 debited to the income statement. If the operating properties were measured using the cost model, the carrying value would

be £6,302,000 {20056 £8,117,000)

The Group's operating properties have been valued at market value as at 31st December 2006 by independent professional valuers DTZ

Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of Existing Use Value in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyers and without any special assumptions The values disclosed above are as staled by the valuer in therr
valuation report to the Directors The valuer has consented to the use of its name in this report. A defimbion of market value 15 set out In note 11
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Motor
vehicles
and other
Fixtures and tangible
fithngs assets Total
2000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 2005 6244 547 6,791
Additions 763 107 870
Disposals (752) 91) {843)
At 31st December 2005 6,255 563 6,818
Addittons 503 170 673
Disposals (304) (64) (368)
At 31st December 2006 6,454 669 7123
Depreciation
At 1st January 2005 2,807 191 2,998
Charge for the year 717 66 783
Disposals (890} (49) (739)
At 31st December 2005 2,834 208 3,042
Charge for the year 716 82 798
Disposals (293) (42) (335)
At 31st December 2006 3,257 248 3,505
Net book value 31st December 2006 3197 421 3618
Net book value 31st December 2005 3,421 355 3776
11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
a) Summary of investment properties
L
Freehaold Iease;:kgi Total
£000 £000 £0C0
At valuation 1st January 2005 151,764 4808 166572
Prior year restatement in respect of lease incentives (refer note 1{(g)) {678) - (678)
As restated at 1st January 2005 151,086 4808 155,894
Additrons
- acguisitions 7110 - 7110
- capital expenditure 4,735 - 4,735
Disposals (24314) (1,885) (26,199)
Surplus on revaluation 18,028 - 18028
At valuation 31st December 2005 (restated) 156,645 2923 159,568
Additions
- acquisthons 3248 2,209 5457
- capital expenditure 1,585 5 1,590
Transfer from operating properbes 1,497 - 1,497
Transfer to investment property — held for sale {(5,299) - (5299
Disposals (42,423) (2750) (45173)
Surplus on revaluation 21,7580 31 21,821
At valuation 31st December 2006 137,043 2418 139461
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES continued

b) Reconciliation of net book value of investment properties to the market value

The following table reconciles the net book value of investment properties to their market value The components of the reconciiiation are
in¢cluded within therr relevant balance sheet heading

2006 2005

restated

£'000 £000

Market value at 31st December assessed by the independent valuers or Directors 146560 160,246
Amount included in prepayments and accrued income in respect of lease incentives (1,800) 678)
l.ess amounts reported as investment property held for sale (5,299) -
Book value of investment property at 31st December 139461 159,568

The Group's investment properties have been valued at 31st December 2006 by independent, professional valuers, DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors or Colliers CRE, Chartered Surveyors, except for those investment properties vaiued by the Directors
Investment properties have been valued on the basis of market value in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the
Raoyal Institubon of Chartered Surveyors

Included within the Group’s investment properties are freehold land, buldings and investment preperties under development of
£60,243,000 (2005 £52,915000) These properties are held at Directors’ valuation and include finance charges capitalised of
£2,641,000 (20056 £2,678,000) Included within Investment properties held at Directors’ valuation are certan assets that have also been
valued by the Group's independent valuers at £42,709,000 (2005 £34,213,000)

Market value has been assessed as the estmated amouni for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion A deduction 1s made to reflect purchaser’s acquisiton costs and no special assumptions have been made except in

the case of those properites held at Directors’ valuatton where it s the Directors opinion that the valuation of an investment property under
development should also reflect its future development potential in order to reflect its true farr value

£112,327,000(2005 £121,635000) of invesiment properties are charged as secuniy aganst the Group's borrowings (refer note 16)
¢) Investment property ~ held for sale

The asset available for sale represents an investment property for which a sale contract was exchanged prior to 31st December 2006
The sale was completed on 8th February 2007

12 INVESTMENTS

2006 2006

£'000 £000
Investments in jomnt ventures 20,464 -
Investments in associates 673 1,165
Investments accounted for using the equity method 21,137 1,i65

a} Investment in associates

The Group holds a 29 per cent interest in Continental Estates Corporation BV, a company incorperated and registered tn The Netherlands,
whose principal acimvity 1s the holding of investments The Directors consider that the Group's share of the assets and abilities of that company 15
not matenal and the equity investment of £256,000 has been provided against in full In previous years
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a) Investment in associates (continued)

The Group holds 50 per cent of the Ordinary shares and 10 per cent of the preference shares of Peacock Place Limited, a company incorporated
and registered in Jersey, whose principal activity 1s property development The nghts granted under the shareholder agreement for this company
reflect the status of this investment as an associate

C M Heritage Park Limited and Luneside East Limited, previously classified as associates, have been reclassified as subsidiary undertakings and
Jjoint ventures respectively

The Group's share of assets of its associates 1s set out below These companies have no trading actvity and no reported liabiliies

2006 2005
Peacock  CM Hertage Luneside Peacock
Place Park East Place Total
Limited Limited Limited Limited restated
£'000 S000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Summansed balance sheets
Current assets 673 218 238 711 1,165
Share of gross assets 673 218 236 711 1,165

The associate profit of £1,453,000 i 2005 represents the Group's share of the result of Stead & Simpson Group Limited The investment was
disposed of dunng 2005

b) Investment in joint ventures

The Group has the following interests in joint ventures

% of share Country of Principal
capital incorporation Actmty Joint venture partner
Wimbileden Phoenix Limited 50 Unrted Kingdom Property development  Fainavon Limited
Curzen Park Limited 50 United Kingdom Property development Granger PLC
Luneside East Limited B0 United Kingdom Property development CTP Limited

The Group's share of the assets, llabilities, iIncome and expenses of its joint ventures are as follows

Wimbledon Luneside
Curzon Park Phoenix East 2006
Limited Limited Limited Total
£000 2000 2000 £000
Summarised income statements
Administrative expenses - &) - ®)
Finance costs 54 - - 54
Finance income 103 - - 103
Profit/(loss) before and after taxation 157 ®) - 151
Summarnsed balance sheets
Non-current assets 20,020 2922 241 20,483
Share of gross assets 20,020 222 241 20,483
Current habilites )] (18) - (19)
Share of net assets 20,019 204 241 20,464
¢) Financial assets
2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Participating development loan 5,000 -
Interest rate swap 126 -
Loan notes 7556 755

5,881 755
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The participating development loan relates to a development project. The asset entitles the Group to a share of development profits based on the

intemnal rate of return of the project.

The farr value of interest rate swaps 1s calcutated by discounting future cash flows {refer note 16)

Loan notes are held in Continental Estates Corporation BV {refer note 12(a)) Interest 1s earned at a fixed rate of 60%

d) Principal subsidizanies
The following were prncipal subsidianes at 3 1st December 2006

% holding in ordinary

shares at 31st December 2006 Principal actmity
DS Property Developments Limited" 100 Property Development
Development Secunties Estates PLC 100 Management and Investment Company
Development Secunties (Investments) PLC 100 Property Investment
DS Jersey (No 1} Limited 100 Investment
DS Jersey (No 7} Limited 100 Invesiment

indirectly held

13 INVENTORY - DEVELOPMENTS AND TRADING PROPERTIES

2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Developments in progress 18673 15086
Trading properties 55990 41,393
74,663 56,479
Develapments in progress and trading properties are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value
14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
a) Non-current
2006 2005
£000 £000
Other recevables 939 798
Prepayments and accrued income 529 622
1,468 1,420
b) Current
2006 2005
restated
£000 £000
Trade recewvables 2,065 2838
Other recemvables 5215 5,093
Other taxation recoverable - 362
Prepayments and accrued income 2,734 1,384
10,014 8677

The prowision for bad debts was £48,000 (2005 £7,000)

Transachions and balances with related parties are disclosed in note 24
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15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

a) Current
2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Trade payables 185 97
Other payables 2,440 2737
Other tax and social secunty 1,412 671
Accruals and deferred income 12,710 11,509
16,747 15014
b) Non-current
2006 2005
£000 £'000
Provisicns 1,055 1,529
Provisions of £886,000 (2005 £1,152,000) relate to properties and £159,000 (2005 £377,000) to onerous leases
16 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a) Current
2006 2006 2005 2005
£000 £'000 £000 2000
Bank overdrafts 5,929 1,075
Current instalments due on bank loans 9,785 5,326
Unamortised arrangement costs (199) (196)
9,586 5,129
15,515 6,204
b} Non-current
2006 2005
£000 £1000
First mortgage debenture 11% due 2016 20,000 20000
Bank loans 67,692 79075
Deferred revenue expenditure (273) (443)
87419 98632

All bank loans and cverdrafts are denominated in Sterling Bank loans and the Debenture are supported by way of mortgages and legal charges

on certain properties and cash deposits held by the Group

Bank loans and averdrafts in the sum of £48,406,000 (2005 £56,602,000), included in notes 15 and 16, attract vanable rates of interest based
on LIBOR/base rate in the range +1 (625 per cent to +1 075 per cent and loans in the sum of £565,000000 (2005 48,873,000Q) atiract fixed

rates of interest of between 588 per cent and 11 per cent.
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Matunty table
2006 Maturity
Effective Lessthan Onetotwo  Twoto five Moare than
nterest rate Total one year years years five years
% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed rate debenture 110 20,000 - - - 20000
Stering bank loans
Fixed rate loans 83 35,000 458 b7 1852 32,163
Vanable rate loans 62 424717 9327 33150 - -
Bank overdrafts - 5,929 5829 - - -
Deferred revenue expenditure - {472) (199) (133) (130) §]9)]
102,934 15,515 33,544 1,722 52,153
2005 Maturty
Effectve Lessthan  Onetotwe  Twoto fwe Mare than
interest rate Total one year years years five years
% £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed rate debenture 110 20,000 - - - 20000
Sterling bank loans
Fixed rate loans 88 28873 309 337 1204 27023
Vanable rate loans 62 55527 5016 220N 28500 -
Bank overdrafts - 1,075 1075 - - -
Deferred revenue expenditure - (639) (196) (178) (2i6) (49)
104,836 6204 22170 29488 46974

Cash n the amount of £6,948,000 (2005 £24,743,000) 15 held on deposit as secunty aganst the above borrowings and facilities

Borrowings due for repayment after five years include £6,738000 (2005 £5,467,000) repayable by nstalments
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FINANCE REVIEW

The Group's financial nstruments, other than trade recevables and payables ansing from its operations, compnse borrowings, cash resources
and equity investments Monetary assets and liabilibes, other than certain equity investments, amounting to £1,394,000 (2005 £1,727,000),
are denominated In pounds Sterling

The Group had net borrowings of £14,398,000 at 31st December 2006 (2006 £31,742,000) Cash balances were £88536,000 (2005
£73,094,000), of which £6,948,000 (2005 £24,743,000) was pledged as secunty against borrowings Undrawn, committed revelving credit
facilhies were £42,790,000 (2005 £24,738,000)

The decrease in net financial habilites largely reflects net cash inflows from investment and trading properly disposals and proceeds from 2
share placing dunng the year

Financing and interest rate strategy

The Group's investment portfolio 1s manly financed with fixed-rate debt facihibes, matching debt service costs with cash flow fram rental income
Where appropriate, iInterest rate swaps have been used to commercially hedge the Group's exposure to short-term fluctuations in interest rates
on floating rate debt The Group holds £27,500,000 (2005 £27,500,000) of interest rate swaps The Group does not hedge account its interest
rate swaps and states them at far value, with changes to farr value included in the income statement. The farr value of such swaps at 3 1st
December 2006 was £126,000 (2005 £nil}, (refer note 12(c))

The Group seeks to pre-fund and pre-let appropnate projects in ine with its nsk-averse development strategy The Group's own development
project finance ts aranged by way of internally generated cash resources and medum-term, revolving credii faciibies which provide the necessary

flexibility to draw down funds when required

Fixed and floating rate liabiibes and financial assets as at 31st December 2006 are analysed as

Welghted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Buerage average average average

interest debt nterest debt

2006 rate maturity 2005 rate matunty

£ million % Years £ million % Years

Fixed rate debt 547 93 101 485 97 111
Floating rate debt 482 62 11 563 59 20
Gross debt 1029 79 63 1048 77 63
Cash balances (885} 51 - (73 1) 44 -
Net debt 144 - - 317 - -
Undrawn faciities 428 63 14 247 59 27

Floating rate debt 1s generally re-priced quarterly based on prevailing LIBOR rates

Valuation of financial assets and Labilibes

A valuation was carried out as at 31st December 2006 by J C Rathbone Associates Limited, to calculate the market value of the Group's fixed
rate debt on a replacement basis, taking into account the difference between fixed interest rates for the Group’s borrowings and the market value
and prevailing inferest rate of appropriate debt instruments as a far value adjustment. Whilst the replacement basis provides a consistent method
for valuation of fixed rate debt, such financing faciiies are i place to provide continuing funding for the Group's actwities The valuation 1s
therefore only an indication of a notional effect on the net asset value of the Group as at 31st December 2006 and may be subject to dailly
fluctuations in line with meney market movements
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The debt valuation as at 315t December 2006 15 analysed as
Farr value Fair value
Book value Far valve  adustment  adustment
31 December 3t December 31 December 28 February
2006 2006 2006 2007
L'mellion Lmullion E'mullion Smillion
Fixed rate morigage facilities 347 408 G (58)
First Mortgage debenture 11% due 2016 200 258 (58} (56)
Total fixed rate financial habilites 547 666 {(119) (11 4)

The farr value adjusiment of £11,200,000 at 31st December 2006 {2005 £15,100,000) represents approximately 218 per cent of gross, fixed
rate borrowings (2005 31 1 per cent) The effect on nei assets per share after tax of this adjustment would be a decrease of 205 pence (2005
28 8 pence) As at 28th February 2007, the farr value adjustment had decreased to £11,400,000 equwalent to a decrease of 196 pence per
share after tax The Directors consider that the fair value of other remaining financial assets and habilities 1s not matenally different to their book
values as at 31st December 2006

Debt maturity
The matunty profile of the Group's borrowings ts set out above in this note Of the total of £42,800,000 of currently undrawn revolving credit
faciities, £16,200,000 expire in 2007, with the remaimng £26,600,000 in 2008

Gearing
Geanng, measured as net debt to total shareholders' funds, has decreased to 62 per cent (2005 165 per cent) as at 31st December 2006

Currency nsk

The Group does not undertake significant trade overseas, but does hold certain assets, amounting to £1,394,000 (2004 £1,727,000)
denominated in foreign currencies The currency exposure ansing from these mvestments 1s not considered to matenally affect the Group's
operations and 1s not subject to hedging arrangements

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other recevables and investments The Group's credit nisk

15 pnmanly atinbutable to its trade and other recevables The amounts shown in the balance sheet are net of any prowision for bad debts Such
provisions are made where there 1s an identified event which prowides evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of debts The credit nsk on
hqu:d funds and dervative financial instruments 1s imited because the counterparties are banks and financial inshiutions with high credit-ratings
The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of tenants

and counterparties

Pnce and liquidity risk
Detarls of pnce and liquidity nsk are set out in the Review of operations and the Property portfolio review on pages 12 to 20
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The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets and movements thereon recogrised by the Group dunng the current and previous
financial year Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on the temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 30% (2005 309%)

2006 2005
restated
£000 £000
At 1st January 6,047 -
Prior year restatement {refer note 1(g)} - 2,800
At 1st January as restated 6,047 2,900
(Credit)/charge for the year (1,021) 3460
Prior year restatement (refer note 1(q)) - (300)
Debsted/(credited) directly to equity 992 {13)
At 31st December 6,018 6,047
2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Tax on items charged to equity
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments (240) (13)
Deferred tax on property revaluations 1,232 -
992 (13)
Accelerated tax Revaluation of
dapreciation property Total
200G £000 2000
Deferred tax Labilithes recognised
At 1st January 2006 394 7140 7034
Prior year restatement {refer note 1 (g)} - 29800 2900
At 1st January 2006 as restated 394 10,040 10,434
Charged to the income statement {990) 961 (29)
Other property revaluation reserve - 1,232 1,232
At 31st December 2006 due in more that one year (598) 12,233 11,637
Prowsions Tax losses (ther Total
£00C £000 £'000 £000
Deferred tax assets recognised
At 1st January 2006 (54)  (4,020) (13) (4087
Prior year restatement {refer note 1(g)) - (300) - (300)
At 1st January 2006 as restated (54) (4,320) (13) (4,387
Charged to income statement - (892) - (992}
Other reserve - - (240) {240)
At 31st December 2006 due in more than one year 54) (5,312) (253) (5619)
2006
£'000
Net deferred tax hability
Net labiites due in more than one year 6018
At 31st December 2006 6,018

Deferred tax assets and habilihes are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 15 an intention to settle the

balances net. Deferred tax assets ansing from the Group's trading and capital losses are recognised on the basis that there will be sufficient

profits in the forseeable future to utilse such losses

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (pror to the offsetting of balances) are shown above
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18 SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005

£000 2000
Authorised
50,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50 pence (2005 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50 pence) 25000 25000
Issued, called up and fully paid
40,711,652 Ordinary shares of 50 pence (2005 36,722,286 Ordinary shares of 50 pence) 20,356 18,361

Number of shares

Shares 1n 1ssue at the date of this report 40,711,652

On 28th November 2006, 3,700,000 Ordinary shares were allotted following a Placing at 625 pence per share, raising £23,125,000 pnncipally
to fund the Company's share of the consideration payable for the purchase of a 14 million sq ft site at Curzon Park, Bimingham in an equal joint
venture with Grainger PLC

In additron, dunng the year, £913,224 cash consideration was also received following the allotment of 289,366 Ordinary shares as a
consequence of the exercise of share options

The Company has cne class of Ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
Share option schemes
As at 31st December 2006 and at the date of this report, the options outstanding under the Company's share ophion schemes were exercisable

as follows (price stated in pence per share)

Executive share option scheme 1995

Number Number
Date of grant 311206 300307 Exercise Dates Price
19th May 1997 20189 20,189 19th May 2000 o 18th May 2007 2480
21st May 1898 20,190 20,190 21st May 2001 to 20th May 2008 3255
27th March 2001 50,327 b(,327 27th March 2004 to 261h March 2011 3380
30th Apnl 2001 55518 55518 30th Apnl 2004 to 29th Apnl 2011 3970
19th Apnl 2004 66979 66979 19th Apnl 2007 to 18th Apnl 2014 3800
30th Apnl 2004 151,424 161,424 30th Apnl 2007 to 2Gth April 2014 3610
Oth Novernber 2004 50,000 50,000 9th November 2007 to 8th November 2014 3925

414627 414,627

Executive share option plan 2005

Number Number
Date of grant 2112.06 300307 Exerclse Dates Price
27th October 2005 40,000 40,000 27th October 2008 to 26th October 2015 44575
28th Apnl 2006 40,000 40,000 28th April 2008 to 27th Apnl 2016 5800

80,000 80,000

Savings related share option scheme 1995

Number Number
Date of grant 311206 300207 Exercise Dates Prica
20th May 2004 28259 28,259 1st July 2007 to 31st December 2007 2830
Save as you earn ophon plan 2005

Number Number
Date of grant 311206 300307 Exercise Dates Prica

22nd May 2006 24,5662 24562 1st July 2009 to 31st December 2009 4640
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18 SHARE CAPITAL contnued

Share-based payments - Group and Company

The expense recogrised for equity-settled share-based payments in respect of employee services receved dunng the year 1s £142,000
(2005 £110,000)

The following table illustrated the number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share options duning the year

2006 2005

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price
Nurmber {pence) Nurmber (pence)

At 1st January 779,122 3397 796,496 3296
Options granted 65,368 5349 40000 4458
Options exercised (289,366) 3156 (54978) 2975
Options expired/lapsed (7,676) 3073 (2,396) 2890
At 31st December 547,448 3829 779,122 3397

All of the options exercised dunng the year were not recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 as these options were granted on or before 7th
November 2002 These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to be accounted for n accordance with IFRS 2

The weighted average farr value of options granted durng the year was £132 (2005 £104) The weighted average share pnce dunng the year
was 5756 pence (2005 4819 pence) Of the 547,448 (2005 779,122) outstanding options at 31st December 2006, 146224 were
exercisable (20056 434,634)

The options outstanding at 31st December 2006 were exercisable between 2480 pence and 5800 pence per share and have a wexghted
average remamning contractual hfe of 60 years (2005 46 years)

The farr value of grants 1s measured at the grant date using a Black-Scholes pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the instruments were granted The services received and a liability to pay for those services are recognised over the expected vesting
period The main assumptions of the Black-Scholes pricing medel are as fallows

Grant date 220506 280408
Exercise price {p} 5800 4640
Term (years) 7 7
Expected volatlity 22 28
Expected dwidend yreld pa. 15% 15%
Risk free rate 45% 45%
Expected forfeiture pa. Nil Nil

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Development Secunties PLC share price over multiple
time penods The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the histencal volatility 1s indicative of fulure trends, which may not necessarily be
ihe actual outcome

The expected iife of the options Is based on histoncal data and is not necessanly indicative of exercise patterns that may occur
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19 RESERVES AND MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY
Property  Share-based Capital
Share  revaluabion payments  redemption Capital
Share capital premum reserve reserve reserve reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1st January 2005 18334 87417 1673 64 1431 44,188
Prior year restatement in respect of operating leases {refer note 1(g)) - - {1,659) - - -
At 1st January 2005 (restated) 18,334 87417 14 64 1,431 44,188
Net proceeds of 1ssue of new shares 27 134 - - - -
VAT recovered on share issue costs - 84 - - - -
Net surplus on revaluabon of operating properties (restated) - - 3 - - -
Share-based payments cost - - - 110 - -
At 31st December 2005 {restated) 18,361 87,635 335 174 1,431 44,188
Net proceeds of issue of new shares 1895 21,215 - - - -
Net surplus on revaluation of operatng properiies - - 518 - - -
At 31st December 2006 20,356 108,850 853 174 1,431 44,188
The capitat reserve and capital redemption reserve arose from business combinations in pror financial periods Netther of these reserves
are distributable
Retained earnings
Retained
earmngs
£000
At 1st January 2005 20,079
Prior year restatement in respect of operating leases (refer note 1(g)) 347
At 1st January 2005 (restated) 20,426
Retaned profit for the year 20,080
Pror year restatement in respect of tax (refer note 1 (q)) (2,500
Adjustment to tax in respect of share-based payments 13
Final dwvidend 2004 (1,467)
Interm dmidend 2005 (778)
At 31st December 2005 (restated) 35,284
Retained profit for the year 23,559
Deferred tax (992)
Final dvdend 2005 (1,562)
Intenm dmidend 2006 (828)
At 31st December 2006 55,561

Retained profit for the year ended 31st December 2005 includes a prior year restatement of £300,000 in respect of the taxation charge

for the year (refer note 1(g)
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20 NOTE TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2006 2005

£1000 £000
Operating profit 26,943 21294
Adjustments for
Loss/(gan} on disposal of mvestment properties 97 (3,728)
Net gan on revaluation of property portfolio and operating properties (21,346) (17,854)
Share-based payments 142 110
Depreciatron of property, plant and equipment 1,128 1,149
Qperating cash flows before movements in working capital 6,964 a71
Increase in developments (3587) (998)
Increase n trading properties (14975) (34,248)
(Increase)/decrease in recewables (182) 7,702
Increase/{decrease) in payables 1,727 (20)
(Decrease)/increase In provisions 474) 1529
Cash outflow from operations {10527) (25062)
Capitalised interest charged to direct costs 1,145 181
Income taxes pad {473) {906)
Interest pad (8122) (6474)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (17,977 (32261)
21 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
Financial commitments authorised and commitments not provided for in these financial statements are eshmated at

2006 2005

£'000 £000
Financial commitments 11,657 4240
Group share of the financial commitments of joint ventures 3,257 -
Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

2006 2005

£000 £000
Mimimum lease payments under operating leases recognised for the year 2,094 2254

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which fall due as follows

2006 2005

£000 £000

Within one year 2,004 2054
In the second to fifth years inclusve 7,236 8,142
After five years 10579 13615
19,909 24011

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certan of its office properties Leases were negotiated for an average term

of 149 years (2005 138 years)
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21 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS conhinued

The Group as lessor

Property nvestment income earned during the year was £8,995,000 (2005 £10,626,000) Certain of the Group's properties held for rental
purposes, with a carrying amount of £6,519,000, have been disposed of since the balance sheet date

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracied with tenants for the following future mummum payments

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Within one year 736 12008
In the second to fifth years inclusive 21,994 41,155
After five years 44,600 90853

73,990 144,026

22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Performance bonds given on behalf of Group companies are guarantesd by banks in favour of third parties for a total of £151,185 (2005
£161,185) The due performance of obligations under various leases entered inte by Group comparies, expinng subsequent 1o 2014, amount to
£1,341,000 per annum (2005 £1,593000) The net present value after tax of the maximum net cash outflow over the term of certan leases to
Stead & Simpson Limited 15 £2,100,000 at 31st December 2006 (2005 £2,221,000) The Directors do not expect this contingent liability to
become payable

23 PENSION SCHEME

The Company operates a defined contnbution scheme for Directors and employees Monthly premia are invested in an independent nsured fund
The amounts charged to the profit and loss account during the year are set out in note 5

24 RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group entered into transactions, in the erdinary course of business, with related parties

Transactions entered into and balances outstanding at 31st December with related parties are set out below There were no transactions with
Drrectors other than remuneration set out in the Remuneration report on pages 68 to 75

Sales to Purchases from Amounts owed Amounts owed
Related parties related partes by related parties to related parties
€000 2000 £000 £000

Joint ventures
2006 - - 20,008 -
2005 - - - -

Associates

2006 - - 1790 -

2008 - - 78 -
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Company independent auditors’ report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DEVELOPMENT SECURITIES PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Development Secunties PLC for the year ended 31st December 2006
which compnse the Balance Sheet and the related notes 25 to 34
These parent company finanoal statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration report that 1s described

as having been audited

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of
Development Secunties PLC for the year ended 31st December 2006

Thes report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, In
accordance with Section 235 of the Comparues Act 1985 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilites of Directors and auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the
Cirectors’ Remuneration report and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the Staternent of Directors’
Responsibiities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company
financial statements gve a drue and far view and whether the parent
company financial statemenis and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration report to be audited have been propery prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you
whether in our cpimion the information given in the parent company
Directors' report 1s consistent with the financial statements The
nformation given 1n the Directors’ report includes that specific
information presented in the Review of Operations and Sustanability
report that 1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the
Directors' report.

In additon we report to you if, n our opinion, the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not recewed all the
information and expfanations we require for our audt, or if information
specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 15 not disclosed

We read other informaton coniained in the Annual Report and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited parent company financial
statements The other information compnses only the Directors’ report,
the unaudited part of the Directors' Remuneration report, the
Chairman’s Statement and the Rewview of Operations We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matenal nconsistencies with the parent company
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financial statements Qur responsibilibes do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Audiing Practices Board An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited

It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
|udgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements, and of whether the accounting pelicies
are appropnate to the Company's crcumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

We planned and perfermed our audit so as to obtan all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration report to be audited are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other nregulanty or error

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overalt adequacy of the
presentation of information m the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

- the parent company financial statements gwe a true and farr view, In
accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the Company’s affarrs as at 31st December
20086,

- the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

- the information given in the Directors’ report 1s consistent with the
parent company financial statements

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered Auditor

Londen
30th March 2007 Af ( d)
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2008 2005
restated
Notes £'000 £'000 <000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 29 773 704
lnvestments 30 80957 78,743
81,730 79447
Current assets
Debtors 31 319,191 272,407
Cash in hand and at bank 29,750 9,422
348,941 281,829
Credttors
Amounts falling due within one year 32 {286,390) (226,301)
Net current assets 62,551 55528
Net assets 144,281 134875
Financed by
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 33 20,356 18361
Share premium 34 108,850 87635
Share-based payments reserve 34 174 174
Capital redemption reserve 34 1,431 1,431
Retaned eamings 34 13,470 27374
Total equity shareholders’ funds 144,281 134975

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30th March 2007 and signed on its behalf by

M H Marx
Director

‘Refer note 25()
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Notes to the company financial statements
For the year ended 3 1st December 2006

25 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Bas:s of accounting

The Company's financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and under the
histonical cost convention The accounting policies adopted are consistent with the previous year and are set out below

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account, as pemmitted by 5230 of the Companies Act 1985 The loss after tax for the
year was £11,514,000 (2005 £6,662,000 profit)

The accounts were approved by the Directors for 1ssue on 30th March 2007

b) Subsidiares, associates and joint ventures
The Company's investments in subsidianes, associates and joint ventures are accounted for in the financial statements at cost less any prowsion
for impairment

¢} Operating leases
Rental payments under operaiing leases are charged on a straighi-line basis over the lease term even if the payments are not made on such a basis

d) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation 15 provided so as to write off
the cost less estimated residual value of such assets over therr expected useful lives
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows
Fixtures and fittngs  ~ 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles - 20%

e} Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax where applicable, is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the
tax rates and faws that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full on tming differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay
less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallse based on current tax rates and law Timing differences anse from the
inclusion of items of Income and expenditure i taxation computations in penods different from those in which they are included in financial
statements Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s regarded as more hikely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax
assets and labilities are not discounted

f) Pension schemes

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme on behalf of the Development Secunties PLC group The charge to the profit and loss
account in the penod represents the actual amount payable to the scheme in the year Differences between contributions payable in the year and
contrbutions paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

g) Foreign currencies

Transactions dencminated in foreign currencies are transtated into Sterling at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets
and liabilibes denommated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are transtated at the rates ruling at that date Exchange movements
are dealt with in the profit and loss account

h) Share-based payments

The cost of granting share options and other share-based remuneration to employees and Direclors 15 recogrused through the profit and loss
account, The Company has used a Black-Scholes pricing mode! and the resulting far value 1s amortised on a straight-ine basis through the profit
and loss account over the vesting penods of the options

1) Prior year restatement
An investment in the loan notes of an associate, amounting io £755,000, previously classified as part of an Investment in the joint venture, was
reclassified at 31st December 2005 to Financial assets, as disclosed i note 12{c)

A provision previously classified as part of Cther credtors 1s now dlassified as a provision against Amounts owed by subsidiary companies. The financial
effect 1s a reduction in Other creditors of £15953,000 and a reduction n Amounts owed by subsidiary companies of the comesponding amount.

26 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Auditors' remuneration in respect of the audit for the Company was £30,000 (2005 £88,000)
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2006 2005
£'000 £000
Wages and salanes 4,133 4785
Social secunty 506 592
Pension costs 410 401
5,049 5778
Average weekly number of employees, including Directors, during the year
2006 2005
Number Number
Property development and investment 33 34
28 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Company as [essee
2006 2005
£000 £000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogrised for the year 494 500

At the balance sheet daie, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases, which fall due as follows

2006 2008

£'000 £000

Within one year 494 500
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,868 1,868
After five years 1,518 1,985
3880 4353

Qperating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for its office property The lease was negotiated for an average term of

83 years (2005 93 years)

29 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Motor
vehicles
and ather
Fixtures and tangible
fittngs assets Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 2006 733 307 1,040
Addhons 101 141 242
Disposals (20) (64) {84)
At 31st December 2008 814 384 1,198
Depreciation
At 1st January 2006 238 g8 336
Charge for the year 74 72 146
Dispasals (15) (42) (567
At 31st December 2006 297 128 425
Net book value 31st December 2006 517 256 773
Net book value 31st December 2005 495 209 704
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Shares in Interest in Interest Interest
subsihary  assocated n lpan n joint Total
undertalungs  undertakings notes ventures restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 2006 110,246 236 - 755 111,237
Restatement in respect of investment loan notes (refer note 1 (g)) - - 755 (755} -
As restated 1st January 2006 110,246 236 755 - 111,237
Transfer to joint ventures - (236) - 236 -
Investment in joint ventures - - - 214 214
Acquisiion of shares 19,591 - - - 18591
Disposal of shares (17,591) - - - {(17591)
At 31st December 2006 112,246 - 755 450 113,451
Amounts provided
At Vst January and 31si December 2006 (32,494) - - - (32494)
Net book value at 31st December 2006 79,752 - 755 450 80,957
Net book value at 31st December 2005 77,752 236 ~ 755 78,743

Interest in loan noles represents £755,000 (2005 £755,000) invested in loan stock of Continental Estates Corporation BY Contnental Estates
Corporation BV s incorporated and registered in The Nethedands The company's pnncipal activity 1s currently as an investment halding company
Details of the Company's equity nvestment n Continental Estates Corporation BV 1s set out In note 12(g) of the Group financial statements

The interest in joint ventures, representing the Company’s nvestment in Luneside East Limited and Wimbledon Phoenix Linuted, 1s set out in note
12(b) of the Group financial statements

The principal subsidianes of the Company are set out in note 12 (d) of the Group financial statements

31 DEBTORS
2006 2005
£000 £000
Trade debtors 22 54
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies 315,951 265,551
Other debtors 2,395 1,459
Other taxation recoverable - 635
Defered $ax 400 400
Prepayments 423 268
319,191 272,407

Deferred tax assets ansing from the Company's trading and capital losses are recognised on the basis that there will be sufficient future profits to

utihse such losses

32 CREDITORS amounts falling due within one year

2006 2005

restated

£000 £1000

Bank loans and overdrafts 40 16
Trade creditors 11 -
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings 282,283 221,664
Other creditors - 5
Corporation tax 1,685 1,685
Other tax and social secunty 580 511
Accruals and deferred income 1,791 2420
286,390 226301




33 SHARE CAPITAL

66

Financial statements
Development Secunties PLC
Annual Repart 2006

2006 2005
£000 £000
Authornsed
50,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50 pence (2005 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50 pence} 25000 25000
Issued, called up and fully paid
40,711,652 Ordinary shares of 50 pence (2005 36,722,286 Ordinary shares of 50 pence) 20,356 18,361
Number of shares
Shares in 1ssue at the date of this report 40,711,652

On 26th November 20086, 3,700000 Ordinary shares were allotted following a Placing at 625 pence per share, raising £23,125,000, before
costs of 1ssue, prncipally to fund the Company’s share of the consideration payable for the purchase of a 14 milion sq fi site at Curzon Fark,
Birmingham in an equal joint venture with Grainger PLC

In addition, dunng the year, £913,224 cash consideration was also receved following the allotment of 289,366 Ordinary shares as a

consequence of the exercise of share oplions

Share option schemes

As at 31st December 2006 and at the date of this Report the options outstanding under the Company's share option schemes were exercisable

as follows (price stated in pence per share)

Executive share option scheme 1995
Number

Number

Number

Date of grant 311208 300307 Exercise Dates Price
19th May 1997 20,189 20,189 19th May 2000 to 18th May 2007 2480
21st May 1998 20,190 20,190 21st May 2001 to 20th May 2008 3255
27th March 2001 50,327 50,327 27th March 2004 to 26th March 2011 3380
30th Apnl 2001 55518 55518 30th Apnil 2004 to 28th Apnl 2011 3970
19th Aprl 2004 66979 66,979 19th Aprf 2007 to 18th Apnil 2014 3600
30th Apnl 2004 151,424 151,424 30th Aprit 2007 to 25th Apri 2014 3610
Sth November 2004 50,600 50,000 9th November 2007 to 8th November 2014 3925
414627 A14827

Executive share option plan 2005

Number Number Number
Date of grant 311208 300307 Exercise Dates Price
27th October 2005 40,000 40,000 27th October 2008 to 26th October 2015 44575
28th Apnl 2006 40,000 40,000 28th April 2009 to 27th Apnl 2016 58000

80,000 80,000
Savings related share option scheme 1995

Number Number Number
Date of grant 311206 apo3or Exerclse Dates Price
20th May 2004 28,269 28,259 1st July 2007 to 31st December 2007 2830
Save as you earn option plan 2005

Number Number Number
Date of grant 311206 300307 Exercise Dates Prica
22nd May 2006 24562 24562 1st July 2009 io 31st December 2009 4640

information on the Company share-based payments 15 identical to that set out for the Group tn note 18
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34 RESERVES
Information in respect of share-based payments is set out n note 18 of the Group financial statements
Share Capital
Share based  redemption
Share capital premium payments reserve
£060 £'000 £000 £000
At 1st January 2006 18361 87635 174 1,431
Net proceeds of issue of new shares 1895 21,215 - -
At 31st December 2006 20,356 108,850 174 1,431
Retained earnings
£000
As previously reported 27374
Retamned loss for the year (13504)
As at 31st December 2006 13,470

The loss after tax of the Company was £11,514,000 (2005 £6,662,000 profit)
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Remuneration report

The Remuneration Commitiee, as constituted by the Board, 1s responsible for the determination of the remuneration policy for the Development
Securities’ Executive Directors and for ensuning that the remuneration of serwor managers and other employees i1s consistent with the Company's
remuneration philosophy The Committee, which met five times dunng the year, compnses M S Soames as Charman and V M Mitchell W Grant
retred as Chairman on 11th May 2006 following his resignation as a Director of the Company All members of the Committee are considered
independent Ncn-executive Directors of the Company No member has any personal financial interest in the matters o be decided

The Committee's principal role 15 to determine the total remuneration of the Executive Directors and to ensure that senior management
remuneration 1s consistent with corporate palicy In addition to the support of the Executive Director, M H Marx and the Company Secretary,

S A Lanes, the Committee sought professional advice from external consultants Towers Pernn and legal support from Linklaters Towers Pernn,
who currently do no other work for the Group, were appointed by the Remuneration Committee. Linklaters are also the Group's pnncipal legal adwisor

Duning the previous year, the Committee carmed out a thorough review of all elements of the Group's remuneration package, assisted by the
Committee's professional advisors, with the Development Secunties PLC Performance Share Plan 2006 and Investment Growth Plan 2006
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 11th May 2006 The emphasis by the Remuneration Commitiee in considering
remuneration policy 1s to provide a balanced remuneration package for both Executive Directors and senior managers, requinng attention to both
short- and long-term performance

This report sets out the Commiitee’s existing policy and disclosures on Executive Directors' and senior managers' pay and also outlines the
several incentive plans and option schemes in operation by the Company The Company has complied throughout the penod with the FRC
Combined Code on Corporate Governance June 2006 in relation to Directors’ remuneration In addstion, the report has been prepared in
accordance with the Directors' Remunerabon Report Regulations 2002 As part of the Regulation requirements, sections 2 and 3 of this
report have been audited

1 EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION POLICY

The objective of the Development Secuntes' remuneration policy 1s to ensure that Executive Directors and semior managers are rewarded i a
way that attracts, retains, motwates and rewards management of the highest quality The Development Secunties PLC Performance Share Plan
2006, together with the vanous option schemes are designed to encourage Executive Directors and senior managers to align ther long-term
career aspirations with the long-term interests of the Group, promoting the attainment of both indmiduat and corporate achievernents measured
aganst specific performance cntena They are alse designed to ensure a significant proportion of the total remuneration package for those
indmviduals 1s performance related, thereby correlating with the interests of shareholders through either the attainment of growth in net asset
value per share or total shareholder refurn

a) Salary
The salanes of the Executive Directors are reviewed each year and are determined by reference to indmdual performance and in relation to
comparable companies of similar size in the same business sector

b) Annual bonus
The non-pensionable annual bonus 1s based on the performance of the Company dunng the year, team achtevements and the specific
contribution of the indmduals concemed

With the exception of M H Marx, Executive Directors are set a target bonus of 37 5 per cent of salary and an above target maximum of 75 per
cent As M H Marx does not normally qualify for awards under the Development Profit Plan below, his target bonus 1s 75 per cent of salary, with
a maximum of 150 per cent The annual bonus in respect of the Executive Directors 1s determined pnncipally by the three man drvers for the
creation of shareholder value in our business, namely, accurate reading of the economic and market cycles in which we operate, the pipeline
of future development projects and the maintenance of the standards of excellence that are embedded within the Company's corporate culture.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee measures the Company's relatve performance agamnst s peer group compames durng the year
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¢) Development Profit Plan
The Remuneration Committee reserves the nght to make awards under the Development Profit Plan to Execute Directors and other senior
managers who have been mstrumental in secunng development opportunities for the Company

Awards are eligible on projects where the first phase s iikely to praduce profits in excess of 220 million No more than 10 per cent of the profits

of the development project 1s awarded in total When any particular development project becomes unconditional, the Remuneration Committee
determines which indwiduals should receve awards under the Plan and the amount of the award The bonus 15 dependent principally upon the
amount of profit actually realised upon completion 20 per cent of the award will be retained until such ime as the profit 1s actually realised whereupon
it will be re-evaluated to determine if any addibonal Executve Directors or senior managers have been instrumental in making a significant and
matenal contnbution In progressing the scheme through to completion and if not, this retention would revert back to the onginal participants

In awarding annual bonuses and awards under the Development Profit Plan there 15 no ‘double-counting’ The contrbution of any team and
indwidual performance, which leads to awards under the Development Profit Plan are disregarded in assessing the annual bonus

During the year, the following awards were made to the Executive Direclors under the Development Profit Plan

C J Barwick M 5 Weiner
Project % award % award
PaddingtonCentral Phase || 7 -
CityPark, Manchester 4 4
Colindale, London NW 4 4
Cavendish Walk Shopping Centre, Huyton - 9
L.uneside, Lancaster - 10
Hartfield Road, Wimbledon 4 4

Subsequent to the year-end, the only award in respect of Frinley, Surrey and Globeside Business Park, Marlow was three per cent awarded to
M S Weiner, bath projects baving come to a successful conclusion during 2006 A bonus of £87,096 under the Development Profit Plan has
consequently been made

Cavendish Walk Shopping Centre, Huyton achteved practical completion in December 2006 and was subsequently disposed of, realising
£240 mullion of proceeds Accordingly, M S Weiner has received a Development Profit Plan payment of £631,775

In addition to making awards under the Development Profit Plan in secunng development opportunities, the Remuneration Commuittee retans
the discretion to award bonuses to Executive Directors and other executives at any time for making an exceptional contrbution towards the
Company Such awards will not be apphed in secunng any corporate acquistions  No such awards were made during the year

d) Investment Growth Pian

The Remuneration Committee reserves the nght to award bonuses under the Investment Growth Plan The performance condition of the award
I1s that the total investment portfolio return must exceed 120 per cent of the All-Fund Universe Index as published by Investment Property
Databank if the index 15 greater than zero, or at least G 1 per cent if the index 15 less than or equal to zero and, in addition, represents at least
one percentage point above the total return under the index. The total mvestment portfolio return represents the sum of income return, net of
irecoverable property expenses, together with capital growth

The Initial Bonus represents a bonus pool of five per cent of the value determined by the excess of the total investment portfolio return over
the benchmark index up to a cap of £1 million unless ctherwise determined The award 1s remitted following the end of the financral year when
the award 1s then determined, with an equivalent amount representing a Deferred Bonus assessed two years thereafter, provided that durng
the intervening penod the total invesiment portfolio return exceeds a specified proportion of the iIndex.

The performance conditton for the 2006 financial year was not satisfied, gving nse to a mil bonus pool The Deferred Bonus from 2004 has
satisfied the addibonal condition, gving nise to a remittance of £160,622 The amount deferred from 2005 of £21 1,260 will be retested next year
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e) Long-Term Incentive Plan and Performance Share Plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan was approved by shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company on 15th December 1999 The Plan,
which first became operative in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2000, permits the Remuneration Committee to award performance-

related deferred bonuses The deferred bonuses vest over a three-year penod The award will be paid in cash, all of which will be used to buy shares in
the Company, except where participants are subject to tax and social securty in respect of the award, they will, o that extent receve cash only At the
end of each year, the Group's net asset value per share will be calculated If the increase in the Group's net asset value per share 1s at least equal fo
that of the median of a group of 17 Listed property companies, then the deferred bonus will vest as to one-sixth of the maximum amount which can
be awarded If growth reaches the upper quartile level, the deferred bonus will vest as to one-third of the maximum amount which can be awarded
Between these cntena, the deferred bonus will vest pro rata. If the Group’s net asset value per Ordinary share 1s below the median for any year, the
deferred bonus will not vest at all in respect of that year The 17 listed property companies compnse The Bntish Land Company PLC, Bnxton PLC,
CLS Holdings PLC, Capital & Regional PLC, Daejan Holdings PLC, Derwent Valley Holdings PLC, Great Portland Estates PLC, Hammerson PLC,
Hehcat Bar PLC, Land Secuntes Group PLC, Liberty International PLC, Londen Merchant Secuntes PLC, McKay Secunties PLC, Guintain Estates
and Development PLC, Rugby Estates PLC, Slough Estates PLC and Wamer Estate Holdings PLC Furthermore, there 15 an underpin that the increase
in the Group's net asset value per share must also have at least equalled the increase in the retail pnce index plus 2 per cent for the first performance
year, 4 per cent over the first two years for the second year and 6 per cent over all three years for the third year The pnmary performance condiion 1s
considered appropnate as t measures the Company's added value against a representative peer group of companies. Normally, once the three years
of vestings have been determined by the Remuneration Committee, the deferred bonus 1s capable of exercise dunng the perod of 42 days from the
announcement of the Company's results.

Development Secunties PLC ranked seventeenth against the comparator group of companies in respect of the third year of vesting for the
deferred bonus granted under the long-term incentive plan on 7th May 2003, the second vesting of the deferred bonus granted on 30th Apnil
2004 and the first vesting of the deferred bonus granted on 29th Apnl 2005 The value of each of these vestings was Enil

The deferred bonus award granted on 7th May 2003 matured dunng the year and had a total vesting to date of &nil

The Remuneration Committee considered the Long-Term Incentwe Plan to be complicated and unmotivational Accordingly sharehclder approval
was cbtained at the Annual General Meeting held on 11th May 2006 for its replacement by the Development Secunties PLC Performance
Share Plan 2006

Awards under the Performance Share Plan will be made on the basis that shares will be acquired subject to the satisfaction of performance
conditions over a three-year performance penod, with no retesting  The performance 1s measured by comparing the total shareholder retum
(TSR achieved by the Company with the iIndivedual consttuent members of the FTSE Real Estate Index There 1s a sliding scale of vesting
as follows

) 25 per cent of the award will vest if the Company’s TSR equals the median TSR of the comparator group,
i} 100 per cent of the award will vest if the Company's TSR equals or exceeds the 85th percentile TSR of the comparator group,
u) pro rata vesting will apply in between the above pomnis

In addition, the Remuneration Committee must be satisfied that these has been a sustained improvement in the Company’s underlying financial
performance over the performance pencd

On 20th June 2006, awards were made under the Performance Share Plan to M H Marx of 83,293 shares represenitng 150 per cent of salary,
and to C J Barwick of 49,784 shares, P J Willis of 49,784 shares and M S Weiner 44,040 shares each representing 100 per cent of salary
In total, 329,807 shares were, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, awarded to 28 employees and four Executive Directors
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The graph below demonstrates Development Secunties PLC's total shareholder return as represented by share pnice growth plus reinvested
dividends, against the FTSE Real Estate Index also measured by total shareholder return over the past five financial years The FTSE Real Estate
Index 15 considered the most appropriate index for companson of the Company's business performance against that of its compettors
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f) Option scheme 1993

The option scheme 1993 15 a share-based bonus scheme approved by shareholders in that year It allows indwiduals to benefit from movements
in the price of the Company's shares over the peried between the third and tenth year following grant. The Directors may at the date of grant kmit
the aggregate notional bonus which may become payable

Nec new grants have been made dunng the year and none are currently outstanding

g) Share option schemes

The Executive Share Option Scheme 1995 was approved by shareholders in that year This was replaced by the Executive Share Option Plan
2005 which was approved by the shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting en 12th May 2005 The options under both schemes
were granted on the basis that they may only be exercised If a performance condition 1s satisfied

Options over 40,000 shares were granted on 28th April 2006 to M S Wener at 580 pence per share under the Executive Share Option Plan
2005 The performance condition 1s to measure the average net asset growth of the Company over three consecutive financial years against
the growth in the Investment Property Databank Index {All Property) The options will vest on a sliding scale with 50 per cent if average net
asset growth is at least equal to that of the Index, 100 per cent if in excess of the Index by 4 per cent per annum and pro rata vesting in-between
The performance condition will not be retested after the end of the performance penod The performance condition I1s considered appropnate as
the Index measures against the Company's added value

1t 15 the intention of the Remuneration Committee that no further grants be made to Executive Directors except under exceptional circumstances,
for example a new appaintment or an acute retenbon requirement. Grants to senior managers may continue in the future as appropnate

Following the declaration of a 285 pence special dmdend on 19th February 2003, the Remuneration Committee have resolved that option
holders may receve a cash bonus upon exercise of those options then outstanding, equivalent to the special dividend as equitable compensation

h) Savings related option scheme

The Savings Related Option Plan 1985 was replaced by the Save As You Earn Option Plan 2005 at the 2005 Annual Generat Meeting held

on 12th May 2005, following the expiry of the earlier scheme's 10-year Iife The first grant under the Save As You Earn Opbon Plan 20056 was
made on 22nd May 2006 for a total of 25,368 options over shares at 464 pence per share to 23 members of staff, ncluding C J Barwick for
2015 and M S Weiner for 1,410 ophions over shares. The Option Plan was open to all employees who had been employed by the Group in
excess of three months The options may be exercised after three years at a price not less than 80 per cent of the market value of the shares at
the time of invitation  The options granted on 20th May 2004 at 289 pence per share may also be exercised after three years
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1) Directors’ contracts

The contracts of employment in relation to M H Marx dated 24th June 1994, of C J Barwick dated 12th May 1998, and M S Wemner dated 17th
March 2004 may all be terminated upon 12 months' notice by erther party The contracts do not specify an expiry date Severance payments are
based upon the service contract terms, whilst beanng in mind a duty to mitigate, where appropnate. In the event of early termination, the contraciual
entitlerent includes salary, penston, benefits in kind and any awards outstanding under the sections descnbed above, subject to the rules of the
individual schemes and plans PV S Manduca, V M Mitchell and M S Soames serve for fixed terms expinng at the date of the Annual General
Meetings 1o be held in 2008, 2009 and 2009 respectively D S Jenkains will be standing for election at the 2007 Annual General Megting and if
elected will then stand for re-election at the Annual General Meeting to be held 1n 2010 D S Jenkins' letter of appointment may be terminated
with 12 months’ notice by either party and those for PV S Manduca, V M Mitchell and M S Soames may be terminated with six months’ notice
by either party R M Dantzic will be standing down at the 2007 Annual General Meeting which coinaides with the end of his fixed term

Following the departure of M R Landau as an Executive Director of the Company as at 31st December 2002, a consultancy service agreement
was executed with Executive Services Overseas Inc for the provision by M R Landau, of services on a non-exclusive basis  This includes in broad
terms the payment by the Company of 10 per cent of the development profits on completed projects, with a deduction of £675,000 from any
profit entitlement in respect of future development at Broughton Park, near Chester The agreement has been extended for a further penod to
31st December 2007

The fees of the Nor-executive Directors are determined by the Board withun the aggregate imit set by the Articles of Association No Director
participates in any discussion about their own parbcular remuneration The fees of the Non-executve Directors were reviewed with effect from
1st July 2006 based on advice receved from Towers Permn  The basic fee of a Non-executive Director was increased from £25,000 to
£30,000 per annum, with £7,500 per annum far chairmanship of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and £2,500 per annum for
membership of those two Committees and with £2500 per annum awarded to the Seruor Independent Director

The fees of the Charman were reviewed at the same date by the Remuneration Committee, being increased from £50,000 to £60000 per
annum The Charman’s {ees had previously been reviewed in 1999

Execuive Directors may accept appointment to an external Non-executve Directorship to gain expenence, provided this does not create any
conflict of interest and for which they may retan any attnbutable fees The only Executive Directors to have receved any external Non-execuive
Directorship fees duning the year were M H Marx, who receved £3,200 from FIBI Bank (UK) PLC and £15,000 from Natonwide Accident
Repair Services PLC and C J Barwick, who receved £45,000 from London & Conbinental Railways Limited

1) Retirement benefits

Qualifying members of staff are mwted to join the Development Secunties PLC retirement benefits scheme, which 1s a contracted-in money
purchase scheme, ncluding approprate ife assurance Since the Company's policy 15 to render pension paymenis on a defined contnbubion basis,
this avoids the uncertainty of pension liabiibes to the Company, which would be the case had a defined benefit scherme been adopted M H Marx
has a separate personal pension arrangement, whilst C J Barwick and M S Weiner are members of the Company scheme Funded unapproved
retrement benefits schemes (FURBS) have been established for both M H Marx and C J Barwick. The masumum contnbutions by the Company
towards the approved Company scheme, or personal pension arrangements, together with the FURBS, may not exceed a total of 17 5 per cent
of salary

k) Executive Directors’' shareholding requirement

Dunng 2003, it was determined that Executive Directers should align themselves with shareholders’ nterests, with any new Executive Director
obliged to establish a beneficial shareholding to the value of one-half of therr basic salary within two years of appointment, nsing to an amount
equivalent to basic salary after four years M H Marx and C J Barwick, the two Executive Directors then in position at the time of resolution, were
required to secure and mantain a beneficial shareholding to an amount equivalent to basic salary by 1st Apnl 2006 Both Directors have met this
objective The Remuneratron Committee retains the discretion to reduce this requirement in the event of corporate or personal constrants
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2 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)
The total Directors' remuneration was as follows

2006 2005
restated
£'000 £000
Emoluments 2,858 2827
Long-term incentive plan - 232
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 175 167
Gan on exercise of share options 745 13
3,778 3239
The remuneration of the indmdual Directors who held office during the year 1s set out below
Long-term Long-term Pension Pension
Salanes Benefits Total Total incentve plan incentve plan  Contnbubans  Contributons
and Fees Bonus in kind 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £:000 £000 £1000
Chairman
R M Dantzic 13 - - 55 50 - - - -
Executive Directors
M H Marx 290 283 i8 591 1,248 - 101 52 53
C J Barwick 260 186 17 463 367 - 101 43 42
P J Willis 260 125 19 404 370 - - 40 39
M § Weiner 230 991 156 1,236 685 - 30 40 33
{highest paid Director)
Non-executive Directors
W Grant il - - 1 32 - - - -
PV S Manduca 36 - - 36 25 - - - -
M S Soames 32 - - 32 25 - - - -
V M Mitchell 30 - - 30 25 - - - -
1,204 1,585 69 2858 2827 - 232 175 167

Benefits n kind received dunng the year compnse motor vehicles, cash in leu of a motor vehicle, fuel and medical insurance




3 DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The interests of the Drrectors, all of which were beneficial in the share capital of the Caompany, were
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Ordinary Shares
2006 2005
Nurnber Number
R M Dantzic 5,739 5739
M H Marx 277,895 277,895
C J Barwick 131,749 69,643
P J wWilis 23,315 4635
M S Weiner 15,059 6,179
vV M Mitchell 1,549 1,649
M S Soames 5,739 5,739
461,045 371,379
Options
1st 3ist Market
Janyary December Exercise price at Gan on Date from
2006 2006 price exercise exeraise which Expiry
Number Granted Exercised Number Pence Pence £000 exercisable date
M H Marx
Sawings related scheme 3,261 - - 3261 2890 - - 01/07/07 31/12/07
C ) Barwick
Executive option scheme 1995 216431 - 216431 - 3235 6603 728 26/05/01 25/05/08
Savings related scheme - 2015 - 2015 4640 - - 01/07/08  31/12/09
P J Wilhs
Executive option scheme 1995 151,424 - - 151,424 3610 - - 30/04/07 29/04/14
Execubive option scheme 1995 50,000 - - 50000 3925 - - 09/11/07 08/11/14
M S Weiner
Executive option scheme 1995 58,207 - 8880 50327 3380 5360 17 27/03/04  26/03/11
Executive oplion scheme 1995 66979 - - 66979 3600 - - 19/04/07 18/04/14
Savings related scheme 978 - - 978 2890 - - M /07,07 31/12/7
Executive option scheme 2005 40,000 - - 40000 44575 - - 27/10/08 26/10/15
Executive option scheme 2005 - 40,000 - 40,000 5800 - - 28/04/05 27/04/18
Savings related scheme - 1410 - 1,410 4640 - - 01/07/09 31/12/09




75  Financlal statements
Development Secunties PLC

Annual Report 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan
ist Awarded Lapsed 3ist
January during duning December
2006 year year 2006 Vested

maxmum maximum maXmum maximum dunng Vested Final
Date of award award award award year 1o date vesting
grant £'000 £000 000 £00¢ £000 £000 date
M H Marx 070503 345 - 345 - - - 3112056
300404 180 - - 180 - - 311206
290405 220 - - 220 - - 311207
C J Barwick 070503 345 - 345 - - - 311205
300404 180 - - 180 - - 311206
290405 220 - - 220 - - 311207
P J Wilis 290405 150 - - 180 - - 311207
M S Weiner 070503 120 - 120 - - - 3112056
300404 120 - - 120 - - 311206
290405 180 - - 150 - - 311207

a} The final vesting dates represent the dates at which the Group's net assets are compared against the 17 listed property companies as outlined
in section 1(e} In practice, however, it 1s several months thereafter that the relevant annual report and accounts are published, in order that the
final vesting can be determined

Performance Share Plan

Market

price 1st 3ist

at date January December
Date of of grant 2006 2006 Final vesting
grant Pence Number Granted Exercised Number date
M H Marx 20/06/06 52225 - B3293 - 83293 31/12/08
C J Barwick 20/06/06 522256 - 49784 - 49784 31/12/08
P J Wills 20/06/06 52225 - 49784 - 49784 31/12/08
M S Weiner 20/06/06 522025 — 44040 - 44040  31/12/08

a) Nane of the Directars had a beneficial interest in the shares of any subsidiary company

b) The mid-market pnce of the shares at the close of business on 28th December 2006, the last trading day in the financial year, was 695
pence and the range duning 2006 was 475 pence to 695 pence

¢} No options lapsed or were exercised during the year, except as disclosed above

d) There were no iransactions between 3 1st December 2006 and the date of this report.
Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

M S Soames

Charrman of the Remuneration Committee
30th March 2007
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